
DOWNERS GROVE PUBLIC LIBRARY 
BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 
JANUARY 25, 2022, 7:30 P.M. 
KIDS PROGRAM ROOM 

AGENDA 
1. Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance, Land Acknowledgment

2. Roll Call

3. Welcome to Visitors

4. Approval of Minutes
a. November 16, 2022 Regular Meeting Requested Action: Approval 

5. Financial Matters
a. November 2022 Financial Report
b. December 2022 Invoices Requested Action: Approval 
c. December 2022 Financial Report
d. January 2023 Invoices Requested Action: Approval 

6. Public Comment on Agenda Items

7. Public Comment on Other Library Business

8. New Business
a. Building Operations Department Presentation

Requested Action: None 
b. Libraries Illinois Risk Agency (LIRA) Insurance Renewal – Property/Casualty

and Workers Compensation Requested Action: Approval 
c. Bylaws Update Requested Action: Discussion 

9. Unfinished Business

10. Library Director’s Report
a. Illinois Public Library Per Capita Grant Application - Standards for Illinois

Public Libraries Review

11. Executive Session
a. 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(1), for discussion of the appointment, employment,

compensation, discipline, performance, or dismissal of a specific employee

12. Action for Items Discussed in Executive Session  Requested Action: Approval

13. Trustee Comments and Requests for Information

14. Adjournment

1



DOWNERS GROVE PUBLIC LIBRARY 

BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

NOVEMBER 16, 2022, 7:30 P.M. 

KIDS PROGRAM ROOM 

 

DRAFT MINUTES 

  

1. Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance, Land Acknowledgment.  President 

Gigani called the meeting to order at 7:33 p.m. and led the room in the Pledge of 

Allegiance. President Gigani read aloud the Downers Grove Public Library Land 

Acknowledgement. 

 

2. Roll Call.  Members present: Trustee Carissa Dougherty, Trustee Dave 

Humphreys, Trustee Barnali Khuntia, Trustee Bill Nienburg, Trustee Marti 

Sladek, President Swapna Gigani. Absent: None. 

 

Also present: Library Director Julie Milavec, Assistant Library Director Jen 

Ryjewski, Business Office Assistant Scott Anderson, Media Lab Coordinator Ed 

Bromiel. 

 

3. Welcome to Visitors.  President Gigani welcomed visitors and thanked them for 

their interest in the library. 

 

4. Oath of Office.  Notary Public Scott Anderson administered the oath of office to 

new trustee Marti Sladek. 

 

5. Approval of Minutes. 

a. October 26, 2022 Regular Meeting.  It was moved by Khuntia and seconded 

by Humphreys THAT the Minutes of the October 26, 2022 Regular Monthly 

Meeting be approved as presented. Motion passed by voice vote. 

 

6. Financial Matters. 

a. October 2022 Financial Report.  Library Director Julie Milavec presented the 

report. The library is 83% through the year. There is a difference in the Cash 

Investment and Fund Balance report this month, due to voided checks that 

are being reissued. There were a number of checks from the September 

check run that were never received by vendors, with only one being returned 

to the library. All missing checks are being voided and reissued. The library 

has collected 103.5% of estimated revenue for the fiscal year and expended 

79.4% of the budget. Milavec reiterated that there are a couple of expenditure 

lines that are going over budget due to known factors, including the Special 

Legal line due to FOIA requests and the Intangible Assets (Software) line due 

2



to the licenses for Google Vault that are needed to obtain emails for the 

incoming FOIA requests. 

 

b. November 2022 Invoices.  It was moved by Khuntia and seconded by 

Dougherty THAT the payment of November 2022 Operating Fund invoices 

totaling $108,727.00, the acceptance of November 2022 credit memos 

totaling $17.42, and the ratification of October 2022 payrolls totaling 

$255,740.75 be approved.  Roll call: Ayes: Dougherty, Humphreys, Khuntia, 

Nienburg, Sladek, Gigani. Nays: None. Abstentions: None.  

 

7. Public Comment on Agenda Items.  President Gigani invited comment. There 

was none. 

 

8. Public Comment on Other Library Business.  President Gigani invited 

comment.  

Terry Newsome, from Darien, is part of the Downers Grove community, unlike 

Director Milavec. His twins are sophomores at Downers Grove South High 

School, he’s a Downers Grove Republican Committeeman and the Illinois 

President of Parents Involved in Education. He previously owned a business in 

Downers Grove. He is a reciprocal member of the Downers Grove Library 

through Darien. He is at the meeting to expose Julie and her woke leftist friends, 

such as Jill Bartholemule and Kylie Spahn, for the hypocrisy, hate, and 

extremism when replying to members of the community who have different views 

from them. Like Mr. Newsome, many other members of the community were 

falsely accused and aggressively attacked on social media for being responsible 

for the threats made against the library. Most importantly, he wants to inform the 

community about the ongoing safety concerns affecting this library. We all agree 

that violent threats are unacceptable and should be reported to law enforcement. 

Julie contacted the media and held a phony press conference to share the 

threats associated with the children’s drag bingo. What Julie didn’t share is the 

multiple law enforcement agencies that investigated all these threats and 

deemed them as not credible and not part of the Downers Grove community. 

Julie falsely claimed that she canceled the event due to her concerns for the 

safety and security of the staff. Tonight, he is going to prove that she is not really 

concerned with the safety and security of her staff and the record will prove that 

tonight. Julie knowingly defamed the entire community and parents who 

peacefully disagreed with her views. While Julie was voicing her phony safety 

concerns to the media, the public and library staff were in imminent danger. Julie 

knowingly hid the truth from the community and law enforcement. The clear and 

present danger affecting the library staff was happening on a daily basis. For 

years, Julie did little to enact policies to protect her staff and members. Due to 

her lack of respect for law enforcement, she rarely engaged the police. Most 

importantly, he wanted to state that Downers Grove is not hateful towards the 

3



LGBTQ community. Downers Grove has an outstanding track record of 

supporting the LGBTQ community. For instance, Downers Grove has a LGBTQ 

youth center, dedicated Pride month, and many other events and activities 

celebrating the diversity throughout the year, which never experienced hateful or 

violent incidents. Prior to the highly controversial children’s drag bingo event, he 

would like to know how many threats the library or Downers Grove community 

received as it relates to LGBTQ and Pride. After he reads through his stack of 

documented incidents, he is going to have a few questions for the Board, Mayor, 

and City Council. He’s going to ask if they are aware of the number of incidents 

happening in the library and if so, what steps are they taking to make this a safe 

space. Why doesn’t the library have a zero tolerance policy for calling law 

enforcement when the law is broken in the library? Most of the library’s incident 

reports, PITS reports, are from offenders who do not live in Downers Grove. He 

summarizes what was found in the PITS reports. Destruction of property, verbal 

harassment of staff, illegal/prohibited activity, physical assault on library staff, 

weapons threats, profane language, masturbation, violent threatening 

statements, threatening to kill the staff, under the influence of illegal substances, 

preparing illegal substances, indecent exposure, and public indecency around 

minors all happened without the police being called. Tutors are scared to tutor at 

the library for their own safety. If Julie was really concerned about increasing the 

safety and security of staff members, she would have implemented a zero 

tolerance policy for all violations of the law that occur under the building. Either 

the library is going to be a homeless shelter or it’s a library – it can’t be both. The 

library has to accommodate for the safety and security of children and the police 

have to be called. Some of the offenders have 18 violations. If you call the police, 

maybe criminally you can do something. To Julie’s credit, she can only give them 

a year’s suspension based on Illinois law. If she respected law enforcement and 

did active shooter drills for staff, it would minimize homeless people that are 

making this into their own private shelter. 

 

A resident of Downers Grove addressed what Mr. Newsome said. The only way 

to know if the threats were from Downers Grove is to investigate them. And that’s 

what the library and police did. She has seen the PITS reports that Mr. Newsome 

referenced. She said they are not as thick a stack as he makes it look and there 

is a lot of repetitive information. She also refuted his comments about no one 

from Downers Grove being against LGBTQ people. She recognized someone in 

the room who stood up at the September Board meeting and said, “Having 

LGBTQ housed at the front of the library during Pride month – no thank you.” 

She is a lesbian and she does not feel welcome. A zero tolerance policy is being 

asked for. In September, Trustee Nienburg asked that the sentence be lessened 

for a woman who slapped a child. A zero tolerance policy would have called the 

police on her. We are going for balance. This is all scare mongering. If you don’t 

want the library to be a homeless shelter, then that’s a different issue. And that’s 

4



one that can be addressed as a community, together. That is very different from 

the threats that the library has received, the threats the staff have received, and 

people like her being told people don’t want to see things for her at the library. 

The Youth Outlook Center is great, but they have received a lot of abuse and 

threats. It is not safe for them to put information out publically. The library did 

safety training during its last staff day a few months ago. She thinks we can all 

talk about this without the scare tactics and that’s what she would like to see 

happen. She’s here to support the library, this Board, and this staff. If we can talk 

about how to see everyone’s viewpoint, we will all be better for it.  

 

Another attendee commented that she’s here to support the library as well. In her 

28 years in the community, there’s never been an incident like this. She just 

doesn’t believe all that’s being said. 

 

Robin Tryloff has been a Downers Grove resident for more than 30 years. She 

first wanted to say that whatever the debate is about people being un-homed and 

enjoying the library, she thinks it is completely inappropriate to devolve it into 

personal attacks on Julie Milavec. Tryloff had a long career in nonprofit 

management and she is known for being a “ball buster” when it comes to 

assessing nonprofits. She is on the library Foundation. She has seen a chance to 

see Julie and many other staff members at work and they are outstanding. With 

limited resources, they do an incredible amount of work for this community. They 

should be supported and applauded, not personally attacked. She went on to 

address homelessness. It’s a perennial topic and problem at libraries. Staff at 

libraries interact with almost as many homeless individuals as staff at shelters do. 

Empathy and understanding, along with specific actionable advice drawn from 

experience, makes all the difference when working with this group. Staff at this 

library face these challenges professionally as they do with other concerning 

issues they face. Of course, they could use more support and this should be a 

consideration when budgeting. However, the library is a public space and 

everyone has the right to use it. That is indisputable. She hopes that those who 

have concerns about the homeless population will turn their energy to the places 

and organizations that have a role in addressing the needs of these people, such 

as Pads, many other nonprofits, and the Village Council.   

 

Noel Manley is the co-chair of the Downers Grove chapter of Awake Illinois, a 

peaceful organization dedicated to the education and safety of all children. The 

library’s Native American land statement still ignores the Potawatomi people, 

who occupied the area at the time of the founding of Downers Grove. Sadly, the 

statement continues to paint Native American people with a broad stroke. It 

needs to stop. In a recent series of FOIAs to the Downers Grove Library, it was 

learned that this library has become a magnet for criminal and inappropriate 

behavior. This activity includes lewd behavior, destruction of library property, 

5



verbal harassment, threats to staff, and the taking of a photograph of a child in 

the bathroom. One individual, under incident 766 and 767, was banned from the 

library after acting in a disruptive and threatening manner. However, despite the 

strongly worded letter given to him, he returned to the library not once, but twice. 

In fact, a review of the public record shows that this person had over 113 

encounters with the criminal justice system, including domestic battery, DUI, and 

aggravated DUI. A second individual, in incident 736, 754, and 789, was banned 

from the library for acting in an abusive manner and making violent statements. 

However, despite the strongly worded letter given to him, he returned to the 

library as well, on two separate occasions. Again, a review of the public record 

shows that this person has had multiple encounters with the criminal justice 

system, including criminal trespass. Finally, a third person was identified as 

engaging in lewd behavior on July 12, 2022 in the library. This person had 

multiple encounters with the criminal justice system, including battery, disorderly 

conduct, and cruelty to animals. So what is happening here? He understands 

that public facilities like the library attract a variety of people. However, this 

location has children as its primary constituency and yet it appears the library 

leadership is encouraging this criminal behavior. To be fair, he FOIA’d the 

Westmont Library and the Indian Prairie Library for their incident reports to see if 

this was a consistent pattern in public libraries in this area. Interestingly, the 

Indian Prairie Library reported multiple instances of middle schoolers talking in 

the library. There were two additional incidents of parents not minding their 

children. At Westmont, there were several instances of patrons looking at 

inappropriate material on library computers and warnings were issued. There 

was one outlier. Library personnel found syringes in the bathroom in what 

appeared to be intravenous drug use. Police were called immediately, triggering 

an investigation. Investigation materials were provided in the FOIA and the police 

have identified the individual. Back at the September Library Board meeting, 

several Board members asserted that the discredited threats made with respect 

to the canceled drag queen bingo event must be taken seriously. There are clear 

and present threats facing patrons and staff on a weekly basis in this library and 

there appears to be no will to address these things. Quite frankly, solutions to 

these problems are not difficult. Perhaps the library should hire a security guard 

or someone trained to handle these types of individuals. Another suggestion 

would be to interact with the Downers Grove Police Department. Another 

suggestion would be to work directly with County Social Services to get 

assistance for these individuals and their untreated mental health issues. The 

current status quo is not acceptable. It only continues to erode the quality of life 

in this village. Do your job; this needs to end and it needs to end now. 

 

Ilene Briner is a Downers Grove resident and wants to take her comments in a 

different direction by looking into 2023. She has looked through the reports of 

incidents in the library where police were called. Often the police escorted the 

6



patron out of the library. Also, she sees suspensions of library privileges where a 

letter of trespass notice is given for library infractions. It states, “If you refuse to 

leave, the police will be called and you may be subject to arrest for trespassing.” 

She does think there needs to be a plan for some type of security response other 

than calling the police. The SAFE-T Act goes into effect January 1, 2023. There 

will be no arrests for trespassing. The police will give a trespasser a citation and 

it will be up to the homeowner or the establishment to deal with the removal of 

the trespasser. The police will not be allowed to even touch a trespasser. Does 

that mean the library will need its own security? She thinks so. The Board should 

be planning for that expense, instead of concern for imagined equity and 

diversity. They need to focus on security. Police will not be escorting patrons out. 

This is not going to happen in 2023. The Board really needs to prepare for the 

inevitable incident when someone needs to be removed from the library. 

Consider what will be done when at closing, someone refuses to leave. The 

question isn’t if, but when staff will need help removing someone and the police 

will not be able to help. All this is brought to us by the SAFE-T Act. 

 

Laura Hois commented that for two years, the Library Board has let its equity 

consultant, RGW Consulting, to push for radical changes to the library’s culture 

and policies in ways that violate the Constitution, civil rights laws, and the Illinois 

Local Library Act, which says the library is forever for the use of residents and 

taxpayers. The Board can adopt rules and regulations that render the use of the 

library to the greatest number of such residents and taxpayers. It does not say 

that the library can be used to give preference to certain groups of people. In 

September 2020, the library’s EDI consultant, RGW, sought to discover 

inequitable practices that systemically show up in the library’s culture. RGW 

discovered that Downers Grove is systemically racist. This is not true. It is a big 

lie. Yet the Library Director and the majority of this Board readily acknowledge 

that there are systemic inequities here, the library team is predominantly white 

and that’s a problem, and the people of Downers Grove engage in systemic 

equities which must be cured by redistributing wealth, access, and privilege to 

oppressed, historically marginalized people. RGW’s message is to take from 

oppressors and give to the oppressed in the library. It’s a big power and money 

grab. RGW thinks residents should not have the right to expect taxpayer dollars 

be spent according to what they want out of their local library. No, they should 

not have this power and privilege. RGW says that a patron from north Downers 

Grove implies more privilege and respect than a patron from the south side of 

Downers Grove and that these power dynamics allow certain people to be 

prioritized above others. That’s not true. RGW says taxpayers don’t deserve to 

have library resources aligned to their value system. Instead, white-centered 

patrons must embrace the interests of neglected HITMPGs. RGW attacks 

American history, tradition, and rejects equal rights under the law. RGW says the 

library must be DEI-centered, not a neutral institution. It promotes deep 

7



integration of DEI to spur the redistribution of power, wealth, and access. In its 

Discovery Report, RGW said that the library should expect pushback from 

patrons who are not on board with DEI. This is the pushback. Honest, 

hardworking patrons who do not want the library they pay for taken from them. 

The residents who have lived in Downers Grove for years know well that the 

community is not racist. It is friendly, it is charitable. Many patrons who have 

faithfully raised their children in the way they should go. As the Bible says, 

“believe that our boys and girls were perfectly and wonderfully made by God.” 

Psalm 139:14. We know God’s truth and we wish to live by it. We do not want our 

children indoctrinated, divided by race, or sexualized. Transgender influencing 

must stop. 

 

Regina Hartnett is an ex-employee of Downers Grove Public Library. She worked 

for the library from February 12, 2018 to September 13, 2022. Until this year, she 

was very happy to work at the library and enjoyed working with the staff on her 

shifts. Her managers and supervisors were very happy with her and her 

performance. On March 18, 2022, there was an incident that took place that 

involved her. A man, who she later learned was known for approaching female 

staff and telling them dirty jokes, approached her and began to tell her dirty 

jokes. She reported it immediately to her manager. Later that day, he returned to 

tell her about his body parts in a very graphic way. He was talked to by staff and 

left. About a week later, he returned to harass her. He hid behind the 

bookshelves and attempted to take pictures of her. She went into the back room 

and talked to her manager, Christine. Christine immediately said that was 

harassment. Julie was talking to him and returned to the back room to express 

her take on the matter. In front of her fellow employees, Julie addressed Ms. 

Hartnett by saying, “It’s not harassment and that’s what you signed up for.” She 

felt betrayed and humiliated. Staff agreed verbally. With the help of her manager 

Christine, Ms. Hartnett wrote a letter to Julie to express her disappointment in 

how she handled the situation as well as her safety at work. She thought that 

after their meeting that would change, however that was not the case. In the next 

incident, it was September 2022 when a man, who was banned after repeatedly 

having numerous conversations with staff members regarding guns, sat across 

from her and in a graphic manner in detail expressed that if he had a gun right 

then, he’d kill her. As soon as she got to the back of the room, she told her 

manager, who expressed that that was not acceptable. No police were called. He 

continued to come into the library and is still coming in today. She was so scared 

to come to work on one occasion that she parked her car, saw this patron, and 

laid down in her car until he was out of sight, for fear that he would see her and 

wait for her after work. On another occasion, he would yell at her from across the 

street while she was coming and going from work and follow her to the train 

tracks where she would fill the Rack and the Tracks. She told her manager 

Christine about these events and even stopped going to the train tracks out of 

8



fear. At this year’s In Service Day, Mr. Bill Budds gave a presentation on active 

shooter. After the presentation, he said that if staff had any questions they could 

approach him. She approached him and wanted to know if the police would be 

involved when the behavior of patrons rises to the level of illegal activity, for 

example threatening to kill or harm staff or patrons. Would active shooter training 

be done and why hasn’t it been done? Could the police serve ban letters to 

patrons instead of staff sitting and waiting for the offender to return to serve 

them? On September 6, she attended a Village Board meeting and she 

approached a Village member about the library’s approach to safety. He listened 

and said he would look into the matter. On September 13, 2022, she was brought 

into the room with her manager and given a letter of an employment 

improvement plan which included coming in once a week to go over her goals for 

three months. She was humiliated. The nature of the letter was nothing short of 

workplace retaliation because she expressed her concern to Bill Budds and the 

Village Council, Ian and Julie felt betrayed and undermined, adding two other 

instances which were either untrue or not accurate. She spoke to Bill Budds 

regarding the letter and expressed some of the details were inaccurate. He said 

he would talk to Christine, which he did. She’s not sure what details Christine told 

Bill Budds about her employment improvement plan, but when she returned to 

work, a new and revised letter was waiting for her. Not only was it still very 

upsetting to her, but parts were still not true or inaccurate. She loves the library 

and never intended to leave, but she was so devastated and not only had she 

been threatened and harassed, but she was now put on an employment 

improvement plan for talking or expressing her fears. She knew she could no 

longer work where workplace retaliation was active. She knows she does not 

stand alone in her feelings. There are other staff who feel the same way but can’t 

express it and now she knows why. She and her husband considered talking to 

an attorney, but they wanted to extend time to the Board to look into this matter. 

It is extremely devastating to her to have to resign out of fear and workplace 

retaliation.  

 

Jim Devitt is a Downers Grove resident. Recent events have put the Downers 

Grove Library under a microscope and thanks to a few brave individuals, that 

microscope has become even more focused. The library uses a system called 

PITS to internally inform staff and track activities inside the library. A FOIA 

request to the library’s law firm for year-to-date reports resulted in a file so large, 

they had to create a downloadable version, which was over 700 pages. Offenses 

included but were not limited to physical assault on a patron, shoving an 

employee, explicit language, interfering with another person’s comfort or safety, 

drunk and disorderly conduct, indecent exposure, lewd gestures, and sexual 

harassment, preparing and possessing a controlled substance, assault and 

battery of a minor, and harassment. There were instances where Julie, Library 

Director, signed off on a one-year ban, but no police were called. When he goes 

9



to the library, he sees young children there all the time. Do they really need to be 

put in harm’s way in these situations? His wife works in childcare. He would hate 

to find out that a child under her supervision were exposed to these criminal 

activities going on in a place that was traditionally known as safe and welcoming. 

The library states it is a public place and therefore children’s safety cannot be 

guaranteed. But doesn’t the library have an obligation to its patrons to make sure 

the space is as safe as possible? Shouldn’t people be allowed to use the facility 

without worrying that the person next to them has already been kicked out more 

than a dozen times? All of these activities have gone on under the supervision of 

Library Director Julie Milavec, who it seems has tried to sweep them under the 

rug. Why else would the police not be called for these illegal activities? It’s time 

for her to step down or for the Board to remove her from her position for a 

dereliction of duties and mismanagement. He asks that the Board, leaders of the 

community, ask for her resignation as soon as possible and appoint someone 

who can abide by the laws put forth or explain to the community why they feel 

she should not be removed.  

 

Terry Williams is a member of the community and worked at the Downers Grove 

Library for almost two decades. It was a fabulous job and a wonderful place to 

work. It was also a hard job; a difficult job. It’s a fun job where you get to do 

wonderful things like buy books, interact with patrons, introduce people to new 

ideas and new authors, and you also have to deal with difficult people. You have 

to deal with people who are nasty to you, with the homeless population, and with 

a lot of people that have mental illness. This is not something that just happens 

at this library. It’s not just under Julie, who she’s never worked for. It’s at every 

library in this country. Part of the problem is that we have populations that need a 

lot of help and aren’t getting that help. Librarians and library staff aren’t qualified 

to give them that help. There’s very little that library staff can do besides do their 

very best. She knows a lot of the librarians in this library and other libraries and 

they do everything within their power to make sure that people who are in the 

library are safe and have access to the materials and the knowledge that they 

need. Staff can’t make the library 100% safe. She had a couple scary moments 

in her years at the library. They had a couple of regular patrons who when they 

came in, staff knew it was going to be a really long day. Staff tried to approach 

them with the empathy that the culture of this library promotes. For the most part, 

it might have been difficult and uncomfortable, but it wasn’t the end of the world 

or a horrible interaction. There is a big population of unhoused people in this 

community. There is a population of people who need mental help. The library 

and the Library Board is not the place to address that. That needs to be 

addressed through the social services and the safety net that the community can 

provide. With the amount of staff that work at a service desk during the day, it’s 

hard for staff to know who has been kicked out. Her heart breaks for the ex-

employee who had to deal with the difficult and scary interactions. She knows 

10



what it’s like – she received a threat while working the desk one time as well. 

Generally, she thinks that people in this library are empathetic and they work to 

do the best for the community and for people who come into the library and to get 

them the materials and information that will satisfy their soul. She thinks this 

library has done a good job of that over the decades. It’s not a perfect institution 

but there is no perfect institution. Generally speaking, it’s a wonderful place full of 

wonderful people who are doing their best. 

 

An attendee spoke up saying she practically lived in this library for 22 years with 

her children. The staff and staff comradery was wonderful, she always felt safe, 

and thought the library had excellent services and programs. Now, why all of a 

sudden do we have these problems? That’s the big question in her mind. But she 

commends the Board on the staff, on the services, and on the library.  

 

It was moved by Sladek and seconded by Humphreys THAT the public comment 

section of the agenda be extended. Motion passed by voice vote. 

 

Ed Briner is a longtime resident of Downers Grove. He is directing his comments 

to Julie Milavec, Director of the Downers Grove Library, and any trustees who 

support her and her agenda. The recent drag queen bingo event was appalling 

and fortunately canceled. Grooming of our children is inexcusable. But this was 

only the tip of the iceberg. Since then, he’s learned about Julie’s RGW Discovery 

Report. $86,000 was spent by the library, and the results said that the Downers 

Grove Library is racist. The Administration and Trustees are racist and too white. 

The best part is that Downers Grove Discovery Report was almost word for word 

and identical to the Discover Report of the Glen Ellyn Library. Taxpayer dollars 

spent on a scam. The RGW scammed the library. If you read the report, they 

didn’t even word check it. In it, there’s another company mentioned. The 

Downers Grove Library was given a report that was also given to the Glen Ellyn 

Library and several other companies. Julie, did you ask for your money back? He 

didn’t think so. When you thought it couldn’t get any worse, the Downers Grove 

Library gets worse. Julie has turned the Downers Grove Library into a crime-

infested homeless shelter. Our tax-paid library is no longer safe for our children. 

Let him recap what’s already been said: lewd behavior, men exposing 

themselves, drug use, harassment, drinking, fighting, and cursing. This happens 

right outside the Kids Room, or in the back where they sleep and shoot up in the 

bathroom. Milavec and her staff have put our children in harm’s way. Any of 

these topics, drag queen bingo, Discovery Report, and now crime in the library, 

should be sufficient grounds for her dismissal. He’s calling on the Village mom’s 

and dad’s to call on immediate firing for Milavec’s resignation and any like-

minded trustees.  

 

11



Audrey Staron is a resident of Downers Grove and has been coming to the 

library since she was a little kid. She played in the Mouse House, filled out 

summer reading logs, and watched the model train circle the ceiling right here in 

the Junior Room. She did high school group projects in the study rooms and as 

an adult, she’s had the opportunity to work at the library as a Circulation Clerk for 

several years. She still works as a substitute from time to time. Her experience at 

the library has been amazing. She’s had excellent coworkers, supportive 

supervisors, and connected with patrons going through many walks of life. She’s 

found that many people have misconceptions about working in a library. It’s not 

always the quiet workplace that people imagine. For example, she’s heard about 

or seen the following items come through the book drop return: several balls of 

yarn, a snake, a sword, a DVD case filled with toenail clippings, and what 

appeared to be a cat’s fresh hairball. We get many quirky patron requests and 

truly bizarre phone calls. She once had a girl at the checkout desk open her 

lunchbox and introduce Audrey to her pet hamster. Of course, not every situation 

is so whimsical. For months, she watched her supervisors struggle with how to 

help a patron with dementia remember to both check out and return library items. 

There were very rude patrons and behavioral incidents. Not long ago, she and 

her coworkers received a daily barrage of phone calls and messages calling 

them groomers and pedophiles. Needless to say, it’s been hurtful and 

discouraging to see these comments spread misinformation, ignorance, and 

animosity around the community by people who sometimes don’t understand 

how the library functions. Just about any library worker you talk to will have at 

least a few wild stories to tell you. The variety of the people that you meet in the 

library is to her, one of the most wonderful parts of working with the public. The 

issues and problems that DGPL deals with are not unique to our library. 

However, she does believe our library is uniquely fortunate to have 

administration to guide staff through all of these things with grace, flexibility, 

ingenuity, and thoughtfulness. During her time working for the library, she saw 

firsthand how deeply the people working here care about the library and the 

community. She would like to publicly thank the library staff and administrators 

for all the work that they do. And she would like to thank the Board for supporting 

them. She hopes the Board continues to support them, their EDI efforts, and their 

ongoing pursuit of the library’s mission statement. As a resident of Downers 

Grove, she hopes to see the library continue to thrive for years to come. 

 

Caroline McCabe asked everyone in attendance to take a look around at their 

neighbors to see what they all have in common. Everyone in the room wants to 

be a family, wants to be accepted by others, wants to be safe, wants to have 

secure communities, and wants to raise children in a secure place and a secure 

home. If no one’s noticed lately, there is a very large agenda being thrown down 

through every single of the community’s public institutions, whether it’s the public 

school system, state and federal agencies, or the library. She has done a lot of 

12



work with the homeless and she’s walked with them in this community for many 

years, for at least five years. The library is a place where people come together 

to learn. They learn about each other, they learn about other cultures, 

subcultures, occults like Jim Jones, how people can so quickly drink the Kool-Aid 

on anything coming across the airwaves by Hollywood and other agendas. She 

has watched friends of hers help to carry out this very ugly agenda of sexualizing 

children, normalizing crime, whether it’s in a school or a library. Every single 

person in the room, whoever they are – she’s not white, she’s of Italian and Irish 

heritage, worked her ass off here in America, worked three jobs and made 

something out of herself. Daddy didn’t pay for it and she didn’t screw her way into 

the man’s world. Every single woman, every person, has that opportunity. But 

allowing crime to happen in a public library where people do come together to 

learn, to learn respect, respect for anybody of any heritage, of any gender. But 

for allowing kids and families to be exposed to needles, to pornographic things, it 

is wrong. And for any public employee to continue to help carry this agenda out 

should be removed and anybody who puts their staff at risk with a drug abuser – 

there’s been 100 years of research, exposing themselves. A woman just told her 

a horrible story from last week of a family being exposed in a public institution. 

These people fund your jobs, fund the library. To have to deal with on a daily 

basis. We shouldn’t even be here. This is a place where people should be 

protected, whether they’re gay, whether they’re straight. But this is not a 

homeless shelter. This is not a drug recovery center. This should be a place 

where every single person in this room should feel safe to come, look up books, 

read, check out, and expand their minds. Public employees do not have the right 

to expose people to dangerous things, to pornographic things. Any employee 

who has been exposed, please let her know, because she knows tons of 

wonderful labor attorneys who love to sue the library and any other public who is 

going to carry this out and expose you. But this is wrong. We should all come 

together. We should be uniting, but not uniting where you are putting people in 

danger, where children have to see guys jacking off in the bathroom. That’s 

what’s happening. She, of all people, is very empathetic of the homeless. But the 

bigger picture is why are these people homeless? Why are they on drugs? Why 

do we have a library person not protecting the people who fund her job?  

 

Kathryn Deiss is a resident of Downers Grove. When she first came to Downers 

Grove, there was no programming for her in this library. She is lesbian and there 

was no programming for her or anyone else in the community who was like her. 

When Julie came, things started to change. This library has improved a million-

fold in the time that she has lived in Downers Grove. This library is a model, it 

has won awards, it struggles with some of the very same issues that every public 

library in the country and even in the world has to deal with. But in particular, this 

country. This may not be a homeless shelter, but it’s a public building. It’s not 

Julie’s job or the staff’s job to change mental health in this country. It is not their 

13



job. They have done an extraordinary job broadening programming here for 

everybody in the community. When she first moved here, it was very narrowly 

focused on white people and white, straight people. And that’s a fact. We can go 

back and look at the programming from the olden days. Things are changing. 

She is a longtime leadership development trainer and consultant over the many 

years in libraries. She has not consulted for this library with the exception of one 

small occasion many years ago. There are many, many things that leaders in 

every kind of organization cannot talk about, because it is illegal to talk about 

them. And they typically have to do with either juveniles or personnel matters. 

Those two issues cannot be revealed. You will see many FOIAs redacted, 

meaning blacked out. That means it would be illegal to reveal. All leaders have to 

deal with this. As they say, it’s lonely at the top. Because there are a lot of things 

you can’t talk about. Anyone who has ever led an organization knows this. That 

there are things at the top that you cannot talk about. Personnel issues, juvenile 

behavior – you cannot reveal those things. There’s been a lot of stuff thrown 

around tonight and she has a feeling not everybody understands that not 

everything can be spoken about, not everything is this library’s job to fix, and this 

library is doing an amazing job of meeting the many, many needs of people in 

this community. She is proud of the library. She has been in the library when her 

organization was the Organization of the Month and she has seen children and 

their caregivers come in and their parents come in, joyfully, and exit joyfully. 

There is not an imminent threat in here. We need to step back and think about 

how much we are using one brush to paint everything in certain ways, when we 

don’t have all the details. We literally do not have all of the details because we 

cannot have all the details, because it would be illegal. She thanks the library, the 

Board, the staff, and Julie for providing the amazing programming and resources 

that they provide here. 

 

Janet is a longtime resident of Downers Grove and her comments are probably a 

little mundane, given the temperature that’s been in here. She did focus on the 

strategic plan report and she has concerns about that report and what it 

recommends. She finds it without much substance at all, at best. One of the 

things that troubles her a lot is that the report cites that there aren’t any diverse 

backgrounds in the senior ranks. This issue is reflected by requiring a masters in 

library and information science degree, which creates a barrier for diversity at the 

senior management levels. She hopes it creates a barrier for competence at the 

senior management levels. She thinks that the people of Downers Grove deserve 

a professionally trained library staff. The strategic plan implementation in this 

regard talks about advocating for opportunities to advance in the library field 

without requiring a MLIS degree. That’s okay, but to eliminate traditional 

hierarchy of library positions to support the value of non-MLIS voices in library 

work – she thinks that we need excellence. If she has a bias, it’s in favor of 

competence and excellence. She thinks demeaning professional degrees 

14



diminishes our library and the resources that we have. She supports the library, 

all of the staff and Board very much, she appreciates the resources that they 

have but she thinks this report and this direction needs a second look. Without 

regard to gender identity, race, or anything else, we need good people in our 

library. 

 

Warner Kiuntke is a relatively new resident of Downers Grove. During COVID, 

when there were a lot of things going on, he started using the library. He moved 

from another community where there was another large library. During the time 

that he and his family used this library, they have been exceedingly impressed 

with the staff, their friendliness, and the knowledge they possess. Before he 

retired, he was the director of an outpatient mental health center for 40 years. 

Many of the issues being talked about are issues that are decreased in funding 

for mental health services. When he was a director of mental health, they used 

the libraries for their clients to fill out job applications, to get resources. The 

libraries were very supportive of that. What we are seeing now is that drop-in 

programs or shelters in the evening are frequently closed from about 8 a.m. to 

5:30 p.m. Where are people who don’t have housing to go? Mental health 

services with a decrease in funding have been severely cut back. He has not 

heard this evening about any desire to talk with the DuPage County Health 

Department in terms of addressing things related to mental health and treatment 

services and services during the day. When he was a director of mental health, 

they had a drop-in program that functioned during the day that served about 50 

people. But another massive drop-in program, which hasn’t been addressed, is 

the police department. Many of the clients they had would get involved with 

crimes just for the purpose of getting admitted to a jail, so they would have a 

place to stay, a roof over their head, and a meal to eat. We need to address the 

larger perspective as opposed to focusing on one aspect of our culture.  

 

Zoey Ray lives in Downers Grove and she absolutely loves this library. She has 

always been incredibly impressed by the amount of resources, classes, and 

workshops that are available, including the changing art gallery. She has never 

seen another library strive to do what this library does. This library goes above 

and beyond and she is so grateful and so impressed. She is so empathetic with 

the challenges they are facing and she wants the library to know she is grateful 

for everything the library does. Her experiences at the library have always been 

positive, but she knows that’s not the case for everybody. She is very grateful for 

all of the resources provided for everyone. Right now, she is feeling a lot of big 

feelings and she is feeling everyone else’s big feelings. She’s sure everyone 

here is feeling a lot of big feelings and feeling vulnerable. That’s totally okay, 

because we are very passionate and we care about our community. What she’s 

hearing are concerns about safety and inclusion. Those are things that are 

shared. She trusts that the library has been doing everything they can to navigate 

15



all of the challenges and they are collaborating with the police department and 

other teams. They have been doing so much work internally and with the 

community. She wants to say keep going and that the library is doing really great 

work, which she appreciates. She is white, cis-gendered, and it does not take 

anything from her when people who are different from her are celebrated and 

provided resources. It is not a pie. The resources the library has is not a pie, 

because they put out books and have classes and workshops and speakers 

about other cultures and other life experiences and other ways of being in the 

world. That doesn’t take anything from her and in fact, she feels safer when 

people different from her are celebrated and included; when her family, friends, 

and neighbors have access to those resources. She is so happy when her 

neighbors can come in and see reflections of themselves in the public library, so 

they feel included and like they matter and like they can access resources that 

enrich their lives, because they have a different experience from her. She grows 

and is so excited to learn about other people’s different experiences and to learn 

together. It’s not a pie and she benefits when people not like her are able to 

access resources they need. There is enough for everyone. She feels safe and 

happy when everyone in her community has access to those resources they 

need to enrich their life and grow. Because there is this great group of people 

who are passionate about things, she wanted to share an extra resource. There 

is a group called Braver Angels that brings people from opposite sides and they 

have workshops on how to speak and listen on very difficult issues. It helps 

people listen and feel heard and acknowledged and they have really effective 

conversations across the divide.  

 

An attendee spoke about safety. She has gone to the Downers Grove Library 

and raised her kids in the Downers Grove Library and has been with wonderful 

librarians when her little one was running through the halls. They were very kind 

about it. Her oldest son, who is now 27, was a very shy little boy. Even at 10 

years old, he wouldn’t have the courage to go ask for cheese at his favorite pizza 

place. She would have to encourage him over and over again to go do it himself. 

So at the Downers Grove Library, he was very frightened to go to the bathroom 

by himself without his mom. She would sit in the mouse house while her son 

would go to the bathroom and told him it was going to be okay. She’s happy to 

say that the 27 year old now flies around the country and works for a Swiss 

company and all is good, due to kind people. What she’s concerned about and 

the reason she came tonight is because this summer, she was in the library and 

walking up the stairs, and a woman almost knocked her down the stairs, 

screaming, “Call the police! There is a man trying to take pictures of my seven-

year-old son in the stall.” If that had happened to her son, it would have 

absolutely scarred him and would have set him back years. The panic in this 

woman’s eyes was horrifying and she was running around looking for people to 

help. The attendee is not exactly sure what happened, but the point she’s making 

16



is that this is an incredibly inclusive community. They are wonderful people. She 

is friends with a lot of the librarians and she thinks a lot of people agree that we 

should have diverse books, we should have inclusivity –it’s a wonderful thing. 

Her concern is about safety. For years, she took groups of little kids to the library 

and as a bridge, she would have them stay in one part of the room while she sat 

down, so they could gain confidence. It’s important. She appreciates that there 

are people in the world who are homeless and she’s sure if she heard those 

stories, they would break her heart. The librarians she knows and all of the good-

hearted people at the library and not equipped to deal with it. We need to call the 

resources – the police or the social services resources – that can deal with it. 

She’s only at the meeting for safety. She thinks the library is a wonderful place, 

especially for kids, and we should be able to let kids be here and make those 

steps to get braver so that they can be out in the world and be happy, healthy 

people. We should be really cognizant of safety and call the police. We used to 

not have things like that happen and she’s a big library patron, so something has 

changed. We have to be kind but we also have to look out for our most 

vulnerable, which is our children.     

 

Nancy Sullivan is a Downers Grove resident. She also is a mental health nurse of 

40 years. She retired about two years ago. She worked in inpatient and mental 

health addictions. She moved into this community about seven years ago. She 

was kind of taken back by the homeless population in our area, but she knows 

that times are changing, just like that lady said, times are changing. But what 

people don’t understand is that this library is not equipped to handle this 

population. They’re sick. They don’t mean to be. They don’t mean to be sick. 

They can’t control it. She has seen them actively psychotic here. And psychosis 

is when they’re hearing voices inside their head and they’re talking, that’s their 

reality. We’re not their reality. And what’s going on in that head, you cannot 

control. When she was in the hospital setting, she could control it. She could get 

help. She could call a doctor. She could medicate them. You don’t have that 

here. And that’s the population that is now in our community and in this library, 

and in our parks, and on our streets. Again, she has the greatest love of that. 

She lived with that community for 40 years, but she was also in a setting where 

she could help them. This isn’t the setting. The parks aren’t the setting. We’ve 

worked hard with the park district to get them out of Fishel Park. They were 

sleeping. They would eat at the church. They would come here until 9 o’clock 

and then come into Fishel Park until the morning and then the cycle would start 

all over again. They’ve been actively psychotic up on that stage, screaming until 

two in the morning. She was at the last library meeting, quietly in the back, 

listening. She just wanted to see what was going on here. She left early. As she 

was walking out of this building a month ago, there were two gentlemen here, 

actively psychotic, gesturing to themselves, the whole nine yards. Again, they’re 

sick. They don’t mean to be. But this isn’t the place for them. We’re not helping 

17



them. We need to push them to where the services are. The library should be 

calling social services. DuPage Social Services every day. Get them out here. 

Push them to where the help is. This isn’t the help. The church handing out food 

to them, and the library handing out toiletries to them, isn’t the help they need. 

The library is actually encouraging them to stay out on the street. It’s called 

enabling. She would see it all the time. She gave a little scenario: maybe you call 

the police, maybe they’ve done something illegal. The police pick them up, they 

get dropped off. The police don’t lock them up. They go to the nearest 

emergency room. They get admitted to her. She takes care of them. She gets 

them back on meds. We get them social services. We get them a place to stay. 

We get them housing. And guess what?  They don’t want it because they got a 

library and they can get a place to drink, and they can get a place to do drugs.  

It’s a vicious cycle, and the library is part of the cycle. We’re not helping them. 

We’re enabling them to stay on the streets. To stay drunk. To stay addicted. And 

that’s another thing. These are bipolar, psychotic, schizophrenic, maybe major 

depression, not on medication, and then you add alcohol and drugs... that’s a 

recipe for disaster. Then we throw them in a library where there’s children? This 

is what’s out there. And again, she is sympathetic. She took care of them for 40 

years. She knows what she speaks. They don’t mean it. They can’t help it, yet 

that’s the reality. They are sick. They can’t help themselves. That’s why they 

expose themselves. That’s why they do things. They have no control. We need to 

push them to get help and this isn’t where the help is. The library is not equipped. 

The library does not have psychiatrists on staff. The library doesn’t have a nurse 

to pass meds when they need them. The library doesn’t have social workers to 

find them housing. This is not where they should be.  

 

Bernadette just wanted to piggy-back on a couple of things that were already 

said, but she thinks they’re worth repeating, especially now that we’re coming to 

the end of this meeting. The gentleman here spoke about the DLW bogus report 

that was word-for-word, the exact same report that was for Glen Ellyn. That cost 

taxpayers' $86,000 dollars. $86,000! She wants those dollars back. She wants to 

know what’s going to happen. She wants to know if there’s going to be an 

investigation into that. That’s our money. You can buy a lot of books for $86,000. 

In fact, you could buy a security person for the library, which clearly you need 

because after the SAFE-T Act passes January 1, like Chick said, the police can’t 

touch them. The police can’t even tell them to leave the building. This. What the 

woman was just saying–this isn’t the place. The prime constituency here are 

children. The library’s job is to keep our children safe. Needles. Drugs. Exposure. 

Not calling the police? Shame on you. She truly means it. Let there be shame 

upon you. We need to answer for that. This is a security issue. This is supposed 

to be a place for children. This is a crime. She’s ashamed. This is horrible. This is 

ridiculous. She will follow up. She wants to know what’s going to happen with that 

$86,000. Word for word. That’s a litigation right there. We’ll spend $86,000 

18



litigating. This is ridiculous. It’s unacceptable. Unacceptable! That’s your dollars! 

That’s ridiculous. This is a place to keep our children safe, not for drag queen 

shows for little children. You’re creating gender confusion. That’s ridiculous.  This 

is a place for safety for our children. The one girl that was up here talking about 

resources…how many resources could $86,000 buy? A whole lot. Right? And to 

pretend that the library is all lovey-dovey and it’s so good? You just absolutely 

made this woman here who said she was threatened and this guy was outside 

waiting for her and he was going to shoot her? You just said that, “oh, she 

doesn’t matter!” You just harmed her again. Shame on you. For goodness’ sake. 

It’s terrible. Shame on you.    

 

Marshall Schmidt is white, straight, and he and his family have been in Downers 

Grove for the past 50 years. He wants to take an entirely different approach to 

this problem. People invoke the Constitution – two basic principles in the 

Constitution are Due Process and the First Amendment. The value of both have 

been on display tonight. All the comments have been made: all the things the 

library does are because we have the First Amendment. Because people have 

the freedom to speak their minds, but that comes with it, a danger. A danger of 

extremism and a danger of taking sides and eliminating the value that the First 

Amendment provides, which is creating a forum for ideas, where the value of 

those ideas determine what ideas are implemented. And when we make 

accusations, we call people names, that does not further the value of the First 

Amendment. He addressed Due Process for a second, then he has a proposal to 

address what he sees happening here tonight. It’s very, very problematic. When 

it comes to Due Process, we have rules in this society where disputes about 

facts, and disputes about the situation are decided in orderly ways, so that the 

rule of the mob and the division that can be created through the First 

Amendment, do not prevail. You end up with reasoned decisions. They're not 

perfect. Mistakes are made in that context. Someone who has an employment 

complaint has remedies. Are those remedies perfect? Of course not. Mistakes 

are made. But there are remedies to address that. There are remedies to 

address when public officials do not discharge their duties. And it is not the forum 

to make accusations that they are not performing their duties. You need to create 

a forum where reasoned discussions determine, if in fact, that is the case. And 

here. This is a perfect example of it.  These accusations of misconduct in the 

library are horrific. There isn’t a person in this room who wants to have people 

exposing themselves in a public library. We can all agree on that. We have to 

look at common values–where we can come together. But the problem here is 

these accusations; these accusations are very severe being made about 

someone, who by all accounts, is trying to do her job. Maybe she’s not doing it 

right. But those accusations arise in response to the Drag Queen Bingo event. 

You are all here. Many of you are here because you are upset by that. And 

coming here and speaking your mind is your right. It is good. It’s a good thing. 

19



But when you then start to make accusations at someone who isn’t doing their 

duty because you thought she did something you really despise, reduces your 

credibility. When those accusations are made, how does he weigh that in his 

mind? Is that being made because we had a library board that wanted to have a 

drag queen event here? Or, is that accusation being made really because there’s 

a serious problem in this library? And if there is such a serious problem, it didn’t 

just occur overnight. It didn’t just occur in the last several months. And again 

there are remedies for that. People who are concerned about that should go to 

the Village Council, should go to the police department and say, “Look, we have 

a serious problem here!” What needs to be done, and this is his proposal, is we 

need to create a forum where people are comfortable speaking their minds, 

whatever side of the issues they’re on, and they can speak reason. And they can 

bring evidence. If they have incident reports that show a systematic neglect of 

safety in the library, that can be laid out and people can come in and make 

counter arguments. This Board is somewhat hamstrung by the fact that if 

someone makes accusations about harassment in employment or retaliation, this 

Board is constrained by law from responding to those. They can’t come back and 

say, “Well, no, this person…” I’m not saying that this is the case here but they 

cannot come back and say, “No, no. This person was a terrible employee. She 

didn’t do her job. She was released, not in retaliation, but because she didn’t do 

her job.” They cannot defend themselves in this forum. This is not the forum to do 

that. But a lot of these other issues that have been raised today–Village Hall 

cannot respond. They are bound to confidentiality on those kinds of issues. This 

is what he suggests: He suggests that this Board, the Village Council, and 

agencies within the Village Council that have responsibilities for certain aspects 

of the village, like social services, convene community discussions where you 

can have an orderly discussion, not on a Wednesday night, where people are 

angry, and people are tired, and people have to go to work the next day. Where 

people have an opportunity to look at an agenda, and say to themselves, “This is 

the issue we’re going to address.” Bring your best evidence. Bring your best 

arguments. Make those arguments. What he suggests is to convene that.     

 

It was moved by Gigani and seconded by Dougherty THAT the Board take a five-

minute recess. Motion passed by voice vote. The Board took a five-minute 

recess at 9:08 p.m. 

 

9. New Business. 

a. 2023 Board Meeting Schedule.  It was moved by Khuntia and seconded by 

Nienburg THAT the 2023 Board Meeting Schedule be approved as 

presented. Motion passed by voice vote. 

 

b. 2023 Library Closings and Holidays.  Library Director Julie Milavec noted a 

deviation from the regular closing schedule, to add Sunday, January 1 as an 

20



unpaid closing for New Year’s Day and have a paid closing on Monday, 

January 2 for New Year’s Day Observed.  

 

It was moved by Humphreys and seconded by Khuntia THAT the 2023 

Library Closings and Holidays be approved as presented. Motion passed by 

voice vote.  

   

c. Resolution 2022-1 Recognizing Milestone Anniversaries and Retirements.  

President Gigani read the resolution aloud into public record. It was moved by 

Khuntia and seconded by Humphreys THAT the Resolution 2022-1 

Recognizing Milestone Anniversaries and Retirements be approved. Motion 

passed by voice vote. 

        

d. Cancelling December 14 Regular Board Meeting.  It was moved by 

Humphreys and seconded by Sladek THAT the December 14, 2022 Regular 

Monthly Meeting of the Board of Library Trustees be canceled. Motion passed 

by voice vote.  

        

10. Unfinished Business. 

a. Award of Strategic Planning Consulting Proposals.  Virtual interviews were 

conducted by the Board at the October meeting. The two finalists were 

ReThinking Libraries and Fast Forward Libraries.   

 

It was moved by Khuntia and seconded by Nienburg THAT the strategic 

planning consulting proposal from ReThinking Libraries with the time and 

materials option for $22,000 to $25,900 be approved as presented.  Roll call: 

Ayes: Dougherty, Humphreys, Khuntia, Nienburg, Gigani. Nays: None. 

Abstentions: Sladek. 

 
11. Library Director’s Report.  Library Director Julie Milavec presented her report. 

Her written portion is included in the Board Packet and in the packet posted on 

the library’s website. She commented that the elevator project is on track and the 

library hopes to have the elevator reopened by December 5. The temporary desk 

at the Information Desk in the lobby is being staffed by Ask Us Desk staff. There 

are temporary computers in the café and staff from the Computer Help Desk are 

stationed there to assist anyone who needs help. That has been going well. For 

the workroom renovation project, the Children’s Services Department has 

vacated their workroom in anticipation of that project beginning. The staff are 

using temporary work stations in the Meeting Room. Three additional FOIAs 

have been received since the report was published in the Board Packet. Milavec 

commented that the library works very closely with the Downers Grove Police 

Department. When anything happens, staff are in contact with the police 

department. Building Operations Director Ian Knorr has a very close relationship 

21



with two of the lieutenants over there and they are at the library regularly. The 

library has asked for a Community Resource Officer to be placed in the library, 

but they have chosen not to do that at this time. However, they have indicated 

that they’ve stepped up patrons in the library’s area, due to the number of 

incidents that have happened in the library and in the area of the library. Staff do 

work very, very closely with the police department. Staff do know that there are a 

number of individuals who use that library that some may say by looking are 

homeless who are actually residents of the community. There are also a lot of 

people from other libraries who come and use DGPL. The word “public” in public 

library means that it is open to anyone who chooses to walk through the door. 

And just like going to the grocery store or the mall, we don’t know who the person 

pushing a cart down the aisle next to us is. They don’t have to show a card to get 

in, just like you don’t have to show a card to get in to the public library. This is not 

the Downers Grove taxpaying residents’ library; it is the public library. The 

library’s mission statement is that the Downers Grove Public Library is a place for 

everyone to discover, grow, play, and learn. That is the essence of what the 

library does; to be a place for everyone. The library will continue with that mission 

and will continue to work closely with the Downers Grove Police Department to 

ensure that it is as safe as it can possibly be. As someone eluded to earlier, the 

library did have active shooter training in August at the staff In Service Day. The 

library regularly has the police in the building and staff receive training not only 

on active shooter, but also on de-escalation and customer service. The library 

has partnered with NAMI DuPage and offered mental health first aid training to 

staff. The library has wonderful partners. There are social work interns at the 

library, paid for by the Foundation, to make sure that the library tries its best to 

connect those in the building who need services with the services that they so 

desperately need. The library has worked with the DuPage County Health 

Department and Social Services and asked for social workers to be placed in the 

library. While that did not happen, the idea of having social work interns in the 

library grew out of that discussion. The library is doing its best to provide 

resources for everyone who walks through the door; whatever they need to 

discover, grow, play, and learn. That is why the library is here, and it will continue 

in that mission.  

 

It was moved by Nienburg and seconded by Sladek THAT Agenda Item 14, 

Trustee Comments and Requests for Information, be moved before Executive 

Session. Motion passed by voice vote. 

 

12. Trustee Comments and Requests for Information. 

Trustee Nienburg wanted to address some of the safety and security concerns 

that were brought up at the meeting. He acknowledged some realities. He 

acknowledged the limitations that are faced by the library regarding homeless 

and mentally ill patrons, reiterating Library Director Milavec’s comments that this 

22



is a public library. There are limitations on what can be done for strict access and 

usage of the public library. He also acknowledged that there has been a change; 

Library Director Milavec has pointed this out to the Board on several occasions. 

The library is seeing an increase in patron incidents, patron penalties, and there 

has been a change. He doesn’t think it’s too much of a stretch to see where the 

change is coming from. We are coming from a period where the issues of mental 

illness are well documented, stemming from the pandemic, and the fallout from 

the pandemic, and the general issues of mental health in our nation. However, he 

also wanted to acknowledge that it does seem like there is a problem, and 

despite the best efforts of the library and the staff, these incidents are 

unacceptable and he understands the concern from the community. He had a 

couple of requests for follow-up. He thinks it would be helpful for the Board to 

understand library policy and protocol regarding the involvement of law 

enforcement and other public health resources. It would be helpful to understand 

if there have been incidents where the police could have or should have been 

called but were not, and what the rationale was there. He could see that there 

could be rationale where the library would try to avoid involving police either out 

of compassion or because staff felt they had it under control. He thinks it would 

be helpful to understand that, from the point of examining the library’s policies. 

He commented on Library Director Milavec’s comment about requesting a 

community resource officer and having the request declined. He thinks it would 

be helpful for the Board to see if there was a formal response to that and what 

the reason was. Milavec noted that there was not a formal response and the 

request was made to the police chief and others in a meeting, not in writing. 

Trustee Nienburg also thinks it would be helpful for the Board to understand from 

a legal standpoint, what are the options regarding response to incidents, 

including where there is mental illness suspected. He thinks there are laws that 

govern law enforcement response to these kind of things, and he thinks it would 

be helpful to understand from a staff standpoint, what the limitations and 

constraints are and what the degrees of freedom are around that. There was a 

point made around the SAFE-T Act, and he thinks it would be helpful to get some 

clarity from the library’s legal resources or the police on what will change 

regarding the library’s options for dealing with patron incidents and mental health 

incidents stemming from homelessness or other incidents in the library with non-

homeless patrons where there is a suspicion of mental illness. He thinks it would 

be helpful to find out what the options are for increased security around the 

library and are there options for bringing in other external resources as an 

element of security or to consult with staff on security measures. He thinks it 

would be helpful to broaden horizons and understand the full scope of options 

that the Board may have available. Trustee Nienberg heard a threat of potential 

litigation against the library in one of the comments during the meeting. He would 

like to understand what the options are for the Board for following up on that via 

23



an investigation or additional understanding of the details around that matter. He 

thinks that would be appropriate. 

 

Trustee Nienburg prepared some remarks about the upcoming strategic planning 

process, which he is excited to get started on. As the Board embarks on an 

updated strategic plan for the library, the first thing he wants to do is reaffirm his 

personal support for prominently representing diversity, equal treatment, and 

inclusivity in the library’s goals and objectives. As he’s said before, finding 

common ground across all of the library’s stakeholders as the library pursues a 

DEI strategy in ways that build unity and understanding should be a prominent 

part of the strategic plan. With that position established, he wanted to shift the 

focus to a broader and equally, if not more important, goal for the library’s 

strategic plan. He wants the Board to open its aperture and broaden its 

perspective as they go into the strategic planning phase. He started with some 

sobering numbers; 36% and 26%, 33% and 31%. These are the percentages of 

fourth graders and eighth graders who are proficient in math and reading, 

respectively. They are the most recent results from the National Assessment of 

Educational Progress, also known as the Nation’s Report Card. It was released a 

short time ago by the U.S. Department of Education’s National Center for 

Education Statistics. 36% of fourth graders and 26% of eighth graders were 

deemed proficient in math. 33% of fourth graders and 31% of eighth graders 

were deemed proficient in reading. More lowlights include, nationally, the 

average mathematics score for fourth graders fell five points from 2019. The 

score from eighth graders dropped eight points. In reading, the average for both 

grades fell three points. The percentage of students performing below the NEAP 

basic level increased across both subjects in both grade levels. In math, 25% of 

fourth graders were below the NEAP basic level in 2022. That’s an increase from 

19%, just since 2019. 38% of eighth graders were below NEAP basic level, which 

is an increase from 31% in 2019. In reading, the percentage of fourth graders 

that fell below the NEAP basic level increased from 34% in 2019 to 37% in 2022. 

The percentage of eighth graders below basic NEAP level increased from 27% in 

2019 to 30% in 2022. For context, the NEAP basic achievement level represents 

partial mastery of their prerequisite knowledge and skills that are fundamental for 

performance at a proficient level. The NEAP basic level is the least stringent of 

the three achievement levels for America’s students. In broad terms, only one 

third of children are proficient in math and reading and a quarter to a third of 

children are below the most basic level of achievement. This is heartbreaking, 

unacceptable, and urgent, and it’s been referred to as a national embarrassment. 

This must be the equal focus of the library’s strategic plan. In addition to DEI, the 

letters STEM (Science, Technology, Engineering, Math) must be just as 

prominent in the library’s goals and objectives. The library is uniquely positioned 

to support improvement in reading comprehension skills and he trusts the library 

will continue to fulfill its mission in that regard. These are not in opposition to DEI 

24



goals; in fact, they are likely to overlap in a significant way. These types of 

academic performance declines are almost never equitable and they almost 

always impact the most vulnerable in our society. Focusing on STEM-based 

programming, including highlighting the achievements of people across all 

diverse groups in the community and nation as a whole, may actually be one of 

the best way to forward the library’s goals of equity and inclusivity. He believes 

this is something the entire community could get behind. He finished with a 

statement from Ms. Peggy Carr, the Commissioner of the National Center for 

Education Statistics. Ms. Carr remarked about the profound toll on student 

learning during the pandemic and punctuated her comments with the following, 

“It’s clear that we all need to come together – policy makers and community 

leaders at every level – as partners in helping our educators, children, and 

families succeed.” He thinks that’s a direct call to the library. The library was part 

of the toll of the pandemic. For all the right reasons, the library took the right 

measures, and this had the heartbreaking impact it had on children. Now, the 

library must be part of answering this call and making it a priority to help children 

regain lost ground. That will promote equity and inclusivity as much as anything 

else the library can do and that will ultimately help the entire community succeed. 

He’s excited to start on the strategic plan and he wants to reaffirm his personal 

commitment to representing diversity, equal treatment, and inclusivity in the 

goals and objectives, but also encourages the Board to take a wider, broader 

view and focus on helping the children recoup what they’ve lost over the last 

three years. It is truly heartbreaking.  

 

Trustee Khuntia commented that she agrees with Trustee Nienburg. One of the 

goals of doing an equity strategic plan is to lay out the framework and one of the 

goals is also to increase programming and to diversify programming and to 

broaden what is already offered. She agrees on that matter. She wanted to 

briefly say that she wants to be really careful about not assuming that all of the 

people who are causing issues in the library are unhoused people, because they 

are not. As Julie mentioned, some are residents of our community and she thinks 

it is really important that the Board is aware of that and acknowledges that not 

everyone who is coming in the library and having issues are unhoused people. 

She would love for people to also attend Village Council meetings and ask for 

these support systems. These support systems need to be built into the 

community and the library can only do so much as a library. The library is taking 

a lot of measures. During the time she has been a trustee, the library has hired 

more of a safety team, to avoid more of that burden being placed on staff. Staff 

members are stepping up and taking charge where they can but again, they are 

librarians and everyone needs to be kept safe. Trustee Khuntia commended the 

staff for making a commitment to providing stellar service to everyone who walks 

in the doors and excelling and engaging and empowering with the changing 

25



community. She thanked everyone who was in attendance at the meeting for 

telling the Board how much the library means to them. It’s important.       

 

Trustee Humphreys thanked Bill for outlining his points. He thinks all can agree 

that the pandemic has been harmful in some respects to many of our children. 

The latest statistics show a little turnaround on those, but it’s not fast enough and 

it’s not enough. Library staff have worked closely with the school folks in District 

58 and District 99 in Downers Grove in the past and he hopes and assumes that 

that will continue and that it is a part of the next strategic plan too, to specifically 

name and encourage that kind of activity. The Village attorney has issued a 

statement on the SAFE-T Act, saying what they feel it will do and he doesn’t want 

to quote it, but it’s on the public record and we can see that and talk to them 

about it. Bottom line, they are not going to stop enforcing trespass when any 

danger is present. Some other organizations in Downers Grove have asked the 

police department to provide some resource officers on site for certain kinds of 

programming and the police department has said they do not have staffing for 

that purpose. We can ask again, but he thinks that the Village of Downers Grove, 

including the police, social services department, and other agencies in the Village 

and County need to get together and work on these issues together. As it’s been 

pointed out, the library does not have either the resources or the training to 

directly aid and solve the issues of homelessness and mental illness and food 

insecurity and so forth. We can help demonstrate the need and perhaps 

participate in some community discussions on that topic, but they need to be 

community discussions. Trustee Humphreys thanked the library staff. 

 

Trustee Sladek thanked the library staff who scrambled to give her an orientation 

and materials the afternoon of the meeting. She slid into the chair on short notice 

and she appreciates the smooth welcome she’s received from her fellow trustees 

and from the members of the community, many of who were present at the 

meeting and introduced themselves and thanked her for serving. She looks 

forward to the opportunity to do that. She also had one comment/request for 

information. She lives in the Village of Downers Grove but she is in Lisle 

Township, and she was one of the people who helped work on the 708 Mental 

Health Board on the last ballot. She doesn’t know whether Downers Grove 

Township has looked into doing that or not; that’s something that the Library 

Board may want to bring up to the powers that be, since it seems to be a 

flashpoint for many of the issues that are brought up. 708 Mental Health Board is 

a community-based Board to set up mental health services and access to social 

services. It’s a result of the statute that was passed by the General Assembly two 

or three years ago. It’s just starting to roll out now. She believes Highland Park 

has one and a couple of other places up north. It’s a fairly new experiment in 

community-based access to social and mental health services. At this point, with 

the way it has been rolling out, it’s township-based, which is a whole different 

26



group of people than this Board usually works with through the Village. But 

there’s obviously an overlap of concerns.  

 

Trustee Dougherty is also excited for the strategic plan. There’s a lot of 

opportunity there and there’s a lot of opportunity to get different perspectives and 

really think through a lot of the things that are being discussed by this Board and 

outside of the room as well. She thanked the Board for approving the action to 

move forward with that planning process. She wanted to say a couple of things. If 

there is a silver lining to drag queen bingo, it’s that it has brought attention to the 

library, for better and for worse, and she appreciates all of the attendees who 

stuck around until almost the end, which is quite a smaller group than what was 

present at the beginning. She’s actually a little bit disappointed by that. As a 

Board member who sits there and is really trying to listen to all of the different 

perspectives that are represented by the community that take the time to come to 

the meeting and join the Board on a Wednesday night to talk about these issues 

that affect them. To sit and listen and then not have those folks stay to hear what 

the rest of the meeting is about is disappointing. A lot of the comments that were 

made tonight, or the requests or FOIAs, are things that have been discussed by 

this group in the last couple of years, and they are a matter of public record. The 

trustees have all talked about how great some of these opportunities have been 

and all the experiences. Jen often puts in her report all the trainings she attends 

and all the different things we are doing as part of the library program. She would 

hope that those who attend and those who have left can take advantage of those 

records and those meeting minutes to understand what the Board has been 

talking about for quite some time now. It’s a little disappointing to have things 

lobbed at the Board and feel like she wants a rebuttal, but that’s not the Board’s 

purpose as a Board and that would also take up so much time, and that’s not 

what the Board is there to do. It’s unfortunate that some of the Board meetings 

have become a place for people to lob things out there with varying degrees of 

evidence and support and she hopes that we can come to a point in the future 

where the meetings are productive and listening sessions for everyone that 

attends, and people come and listen to all the things that the Board is saying 

because the Board, staff, and Administration are doing a lot of great things and 

she really appreciates all of their effort and all of the things they’ve been doing. 

Trustee Dougherty also asked if there is an opportunity, given Open Meetings 

Act restrictions, for the Board to convene with other community agencies or 

groups to talk about the issues that all groups are facing. She’s really interested 

in that, as she doesn’t really know enough about what other Boards or other 

groups in the community are talking about. She thinks it would be really helpful 

for the other groups to hear what the library is talking about, in a face to face way 

rather than just reading each other’s minutes. Trustee Dougherty also wanted to 

reiterate what Trustee Khuntia said about not equating homelessness and mental 

illness with being dangerous. If we equated shouting random profanity in the 

27



library with any of those things, this meeting would have been visited by the 

police. The empathy that some folks talked about, that she knows is present in 

the staff, is important to her as a Board member and as a community member. 

She wants to be sure that’s being kept in mind and that the Board is thinking 

about all of the challenges broadly.  

 

President Gigani has been fortunate and proud to be on the Board since 2017; 

Trustee Humphreys is the only trustee that has outlasted her by twenty plus 

years. She commented that the patron incident situation is a new ballgame. It 

wasn’t even something that was discussed in meetings until the beginning of 

2021. The Board is all concerned and it’s something they’ve been talking about 

at every meeting and brainstorming and for everything the Board has thought 

about and brainstormed, Julie has done twentyfold with her team. It’s not 

something that’s been in existence for decades that the director and staff have 

been sitting on quietly. It is concerning. President Gigani is concerned for the 

safety of the staff and for the safety of children. She has children and it is 

absolutely a concerning thing. The library and the staff have always been great at 

pooling the resources that they have. She pointed out to attendees that at the 

end of every Board Packet, there is a departmental report and it is the best part 

of the meeting packet. It speaks volumes to the amount of work that the staff puts 

into everything. For example, she pointed out that Amanda, a librarian in ATS, 

was a library representative with an organization named grit2, which is focused 

on mental health for young adults. That’s powerful and that’s huge. It takes a lot 

of initiative for the staff to go above and beyond and out there into the 

community. She encouraged everyone to be a part of that community that is 

helping to solve a problem. That problem is not going to be solved by one 

person, it’s not going to be solved by Julie, and it’s not going to be solved by the 

Board. It’s going to take pooling public and private resources to find an answer. 

President Gigani also thanked Assistant Library Director Jen Ryjewski, who 

recently applied for a $125,000 Live and Learn construction grant for carpet 

replacement. That is a huge number and she is the grant master. If there is 

money to be had in Downers Grove, she is in the running for it. The Kids 

Department is always a good time for Halloween activities. There was just a huge 

Ghostbuster event that drew 1,000 people in a few hours. The IT Department has 

continued to work with People’s Resource Center, another great organization 

that works to build skills for those that are housing insecure or unemployed, 

which is really important. Lastly, the Downers Grove Library Foundation recently 

helped the library with some Kids Room enhancements, and President Gigani 

thanked them for their contributions.  

 

It was moved by Dougherty and seconded by Khuntia THAT the Board move into 

Executive Session. Motion passed by voice vote. 

 

28



13. Executive Session. 

a. 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(1), for discussion of the appointment, employment, 
compensation, discipline, performance, or dismissal of a specific employee.  It 
was moved by Dougherty and seconded by Khuntia THAT the Board move 
into Executive Session. Motion passed by voice vote. 

 
The Board moved to Executive Session at 9:56 p.m. 

 
President Gigani reconvened the Public Session at 11:10 p.m. 

 
14. Action for Items Discussed in Executive Session.  There was none. 

 

15. Adjournment.  President Gigani adjourned the meeting at 11:10 p.m. 

29



 

 

November 2022 Financial Report 

 

Included: 

 November 2022 Revenue Report 

 November 2022 Capital Replacement Fund Expenditure Report 

 November 2022 Operating Fund Expenditure Report 

 

** November 2022 Library Fund Balance Report will be distributed at 

meeting 

 

30



ACCOUNT ACCOUNT NAME

ADJUSTED 

ESTIMATE REVENUE YTD RECEIVED BALANCE % RCVD

80520000 410100                                        CURRENT PROPERTY TAXES        5,862,439.00 51,250.41 5,842,389.96 20,049.04 99.66%

80520000 410900                                        PRIOR YEAR PROPERTY TAXES     100.00 0.00 0.00 100.00 0.00%

80520000 431300                                        PERSONAL PROPERTY REPLACE TAX 60,000.00 821.76 211,516.29 -151,516.29 352.53%

80590971 441000                                        SALES OF MATERIALS            2,000.00 471.85 4,760.44 -2,760.44 238.02%

80590971 450200                                        CHARGES FOR SERVICES          10,000.00 2,379.91 41,446.49 -31,446.49 414.46%

80590971 450900                                        FEES FOR NON-RESIDENTS        8,000.00 876.00 16,405.00 -8,405.00 205.06%

80590971 457100                                        RENTAL FEES                   2,000.00 100.00 1,810.00 190.00 90.50%

80590971 458100                                        FINES                         0.00 70.93 1,291.18 -1,291.18

80590971 459000                                        COST RECOVERED FOR SERVICES   8,500.00 949.88 10,773.63 -2,273.63 126.75%

80590971 461000                                        FEDERAL, OPERATIONAL GRANTS   0.00 0.00 5,789.00 -5,789.00

80590971 462000                                        STATE, OPERATIONAL GRANTS     72,589.00 0.00 103,455.13 -30,866.13 142.52%

80590971 463000                                        SPECIAL GRANTS                0.00 35.00 750.00 -750.00

80520000 471100                                        INVESTMENT INCOME             2,500.00 6,473.79 22,528.20 -20,028.20 901.13%

80520000 471200                                        INVEST INC-PROPERTY TAXES     0.00 321.96 514.69 -514.69

80590971 482000                                        CONTRIBUTIONS, OPERATING      5,000.00 120.00 14,124.42 -9,124.42 282.49%

TOTAL REVENUE 6,033,128.00 63,871.49 6,277,554.43 -244,426.43 104.05%

REVENUE BY OBJECT REPORT

11/1/2022 THROUGH 11/30/22

31



OBJECT                        ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
ORIGINAL 

APPROPRIATION EXPENDITURES
YTD 

EXPENDED

AVAILABLE 

BUDGET % USED

587000 CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 411,600.00 33,528.96 379,450.76 32,149.24 92.20

EXPENDITURE BY OBJECT REPORT

11/1/2022 THROUGH 11/30/2022

Capital Replacement Fund

32



OBJECT                        ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
ORIGINAL 

APPROPRIATION EXPENDITURES YTD EXPENDED

AVAILABLE 

BUDGET % USED

510100 SALARIES, EXEMPT 1,733,543.38 133,480.50 1,483,400.69 250,142.69 85.60

511100 SALARIES, NON-EXEMPT 338,730.61 38,120.53 378,991.17 -40,260.56 111.90

511900 PART-TIME EMPLOYEE WAGES 1,286,018.09 87,097.87 1,021,760.93 264,257.16 79.50

513100 IMRF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS 240,632.68 18,878.61 209,497.09 31,135.59 87.10

513300 MEDICARE CONTRIBUTIONS 48,695.16 3,690.41 41,149.34 7,545.82 84.50

513400 SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIBUTIONS 208,213.83 15,778.88 175,939.80 32,274.03 84.50

519000 LIFE INSURANCE 1,366.20 120.83 948.97 417.23 69.50

519100 HEALTH INSURANCE 496,336.20 37,185.74 382,778.03 113,558.17 77.10

519500 OPTICAL INSURANCE 1,925.91 163.56 1,662.31 263.60 86.30

519700 DENTAL INSURANCE 32,871.93 2,817.56 28,882.93 3,989.00 87.90

521000 SUPPLIES 108,750.00 7,709.23 88,867.61 19,882.39 81.70

525100 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 21,750.00 2,099.51 19,889.73 1,860.27 91.40

528000 SMALL TOOLS & EQUIPMENT 29,900.00 1,675.84 19,694.88 10,205.12 65.90

530200 DUES AND MEMBERSHIPS 7,500.00 1,036.00 8,232.00 -732.00 109.80

530300 SEMINARS, CONFERENCES& MEETINGS 28,600.00 1,853.86 21,747.33 6,852.67 76.00

530800 RECOGNITION PROGRAM-STAFF 5,000.00 265.79 5,214.66 -214.66 104.30

531500 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 75,200.00 845.79 65,016.62 10,183.38 86.50

532200 PERSONNEL RECRUITMENT 1,000.00 79.20 1,447.74 -447.74 144.80

532300 SPECIAL LEGAL 6,000.00 4,860.00 6,832.50 -832.50 113.90

534600 DATA PROCESSING SERVICES 119,495.00 0.00 88,556.81 30,938.19 74.10

538000 PRINTING SERVICES 27,250.00 4,936.00 22,835.00 4,415.00 83.80

539100 TELEPHONE 17,000.00 1,714.27 17,639.67 -639.67 103.80

539200 POSTAGE 29,000.00 3,000.00 22,838.97 6,161.03 78.80

540700 ADVERTISING & PUBLIC RELATIONS 19,500.00 123.40 13,989.04 5,510.96 71.70

542000 INSURANCE - OTHER POLICIES 70,700.00 0.00 61,940.00 8,760.00 87.60

543000 BUILDING MAINTENANCE SERVICES 92,000.00 17,286.42 85,876.68 6,123.32 93.30

545000 CLEANING SERVICES 80,000.00 7,048.78 75,570.77 4,429.23 94.50

546100 UTILITIES 24,250.00 4,502.07 35,751.50 -11,501.50 147.40

547000 OTHER EQUIPMENT R & M 11,500.00 2,134.62 18,042.52 -6,542.52 156.90

548100 RENTALS 18,000.00 817.88 15,673.21 2,326.79 87.10

562000 RECOVERABLES 4,000.00 8.71 166.15 3,833.85 4.20

EXPENDITURE BY OBJECT REPORT

11/1/2022 THROUGH 11/30/2022

Operating Fund

33



OBJECT                        ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
ORIGINAL 

APPROPRIATION EXPENDITURES YTD EXPENDED

AVAILABLE 

BUDGET % USED

EXPENDITURE BY OBJECT REPORT

11/1/2022 THROUGH 11/30/2022

Operating Fund

569000 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 2,500.00 8,602.00 18,990.00 -16,490.00 759.60

577000 CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 58,000.00 0.00 64,369.50 -6,369.50 111.00

585100 ELECTRONIC RESOURCES 245,800.00 11,561.85 228,473.12 17,326.88 93.00

585200 PRINT MATERIALS 348,150.00 16,981.49 281,190.15 66,959.85 80.80

585300 AUDIOVISUAL MATERIALS 146,200.00 8,445.18 95,146.26 51,053.74 65.10

587000 CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 60,000.00 0.00 104,402.55 -44,402.55 174.00

588000 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (SOFTWARE) 59,500.00 10,483.70 88,211.42 -28,711.42 148.30

Total 805 LIBRARY FUND 6,104,878.99 455,406.08 5,301,617.65 803,261.34 86.80

34



 

 

December 2022 Invoices 

Paid on December 16, 2022 

 

Included: 

 Capital Replacement Fund Invoice List 

 Capital Replacement Fund Invoices of Note 

 Operating Fund Invoice List 

 Operating Fund Invoices of Note 

 Credit Memo Edit List 

 December 2022 Credit Card Report 

 November 2022 Payroll Report 

35



VENDOR # VENDOR NAME NUMBER OF INVOICES GROSS AMOUNT

14548 PRODUCT ARCHITECTURE + DESIGN 1 3,547.11

GRAND TOTALS: 1 3,547.11

INVOICE LISTING - DECEMBER 2022

Capital Replacement Fund

36



INVOICES OF NOTE 

 

For Library Check Run on December 16, 2022

Capital Replacement Fund

14548 Product Architecture + Design (Workroom Renovation Project) $3,547.11

37



VENDOR # VENDOR NAME NUMBER OF INVOICES GROSS AMOUNT

21463 360CLEAN 1 5,350.00

10255 4IMPRINT, INC 1 3,451.60

319 AMANDA BLAU 1 43.49

18213 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC. 11 1,489.02

20916 ANDERSEN VOINOVICH 1 400.00

403 AT&T 1 270.74

672 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS 6 514.36

16893 BIBLIOTHECA 1 972.55

829 BLACKSTONE AUDIOBOOKS 15 1,393.08

7517 BOOKFLIX, SCHOLASTIC INC 2 75.40

1223 CASE LOTS 1 294.60

8705 CASH - LIBRARY 1 183.90

8323 CENGAGE LEARNING 10 768.51

1277 CENTER POINT PUBLISHING 1 24.57

1374 CHICAGO SUN-TIMES 1 436.80

1377 CHICAGO TRIBUNE 1 139.42

13235 CHILDREN'S PLUS, INC. 3 9,730.18

1459 CINTAS CORPORATION #344 2 103.78

200014 CREATIVE CLINICAL CONSULTING 1 700.00

2359 DOWNERS GROVE SANITARY DIST. 2 151.35

2539 EBSCO SUBSCRIPTION SERVICES 2 8.83

5572 FIA CARD SERVICES, N.A. 15 15,346.50

9775 FINDAWAY WORLD, LLC 2 462.61

17510 FIRST COMMUNICATIONS, LLC 1 547.36

2905 FRANCOTYP-POSTALIA, INC. 1 111.00

200134 G.E. RIDDIFORD COMPANY INC 1 3,616.09

16977 GARVEY'S OFFICE PRODUCTS, INC. 9 1,352.16

13544 GOOGLE, INC. 1 990.00

20596 GRACE GOODWYN 1 61.00

3188 GRAHAM CRACKER COMICS, LTD 1 451.17

9102 HAGG PRESS, INC 1 5,077.00

200098 IMPERIAL BAG & PAPER CO LLC 3 1,050.37

3688 INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES, LLC 48 20,024.87

200130 JACQUELINE K SCHATTNER 1 130.00

10993 KENT ADHESIVE PRODUCTS COMPANY 1 56.80

4812 KLEIN, THORPE AND JENKINS LTD 1 3,600.00

4928 LAKESHORE LEARNING MATERIALS 1 664.99

9577 LIBRARIESFIRST 2 5,232.00

5613 MEDLIN COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 1 703.11

5866 MIDWEST TAPE 9 4,126.65

20739 MURPHY SECURITY SOLUTIONS 1 750.00

18123 NANCY ROONEY 1 18.61

6161 NICOR GAS 1 5,246.68

6295 ORKIN PEST CONTROL 2 995.00

12499 OVERDRIVE, INC. 3 10,662.27

18491 PEOPLEFACTS, LLC 1 131.74

6698 PRINT SMART 4 2,280.89

14548 PRODUCT ARCHITECTURE + DESIGN 1 3,547.11

14549 REACHING ACROSS ILLINOIS 1 2,300.00

INVOICE LISTING - DECEMBER 2022

Operating Fund

38



VENDOR # VENDOR NAME NUMBER OF INVOICES GROSS AMOUNT

INVOICE LISTING - DECEMBER 2022

Operating Fund

200133 SOLUTIONS FOR STUDENT SUCCESS LLC 1 400.00

7787 STANLEY ACCESS TECHNOLOGIES 1 478.75

7918 STEVEN G. HASHIMOTO 1 700.00

9112 STRAUSS TAX SERVICE 1 100.00

12698 SWAN 1 16,707.25

3567 TECHNOLOGY MGMT REV FUND 1 126.00

200113 THE BLACKBERRY COLLECTION LLC 1 2,250.00

10020 THE DAVEY TREE EXPERT CO. 1 271.00

6859 THRYV 1 16.44

13611 TRACI SKOCIK 1 46.87

16841 TSAI FONG BOOKS, INC. 2 122.18

11517 UNIQUE MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC 1 41.20

18458 URBAN ELEVATOR SERVICE, LLC 1 225.00

19196 VAN MCGARY 3 185.14

8649 VAUGHAN PLANTSCAPES, INC. 1 158.50

GRAND TOTALS: 198 137,866.49

39



INVOICES OF NOTE 

Operating Fund

For Library Check Run on December 16, 2022

20916 Andersen Voinovich (PRISM Consulting Fee) $400.00

8705 Cash - Library (Petty Cash Reimbursement) $183.90

200014 Creative Clinical Consulting LLC (Staff Art Therapy Support Session) $700.00

200134 G.E. Riddiford Company Inc (Roof Flood Leak Test) $3,616.09

20596 Grace Goodwyn (Employee Reimbursement) $61.00

200130 Jacqueline K Schattner (Program Payment) $130.00

4812 Klein, Thorpe and Jenkins, LTD (Legal Fees) $3,600.00

14549 Reaching Across Illinois (Subscription Renewal) $2,300.00

200133 Solutions for Student Success LLC (Program Payment) $400.00

7918 Steven G. Hashimoto (Program Payment) $700.00

9112 Strauss Tax Service (Program Payment) $100.00

200113 The Blackberry Collection LLC (EDI Consulting Fees) $2,250.00

19196 Van McGary (Employee Reimbursement) $185.14

40



VENDOR # VENDOR NAME NUMBER OF CREDIT MEMOS GROSS AMOUNT

3688 INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES, LLC 2 33.08

GRAND TOTALS: 2 33.08

CREDIT MEMO LISTING - DECEMBER 2022

Operating Fund

41



Library Credit Card Details for the December 16, 2022 Check Run

Julie Milavec

971 5303 Seminars, Mtgs, & Conferences Management Team Lunch 225.00$          

971 5315 Professional Services Prism Team Meeting Meal 163.04$          

973 5853 AV Materials Video Games for Childrens Dept 789.37$          

Total 1,177.41$       

Katelyn Vabalaitis

971 5210 Supplies Supplies 120.93$          

971 5280 Small Tools & Equipment Notary Supplies 11.90$            

971 5303 Seminars, Mtgs, & Conferences HR Training 249.00$          

971 5308 Recognition Program-Staff Board Recap Meeting Snacks 85.41$            

978 5391 Telephone Comcast Monthly Payment 488.78$          

Total 956.02$          

978 5210 Supplies Desk Calendars 32.28$            

978 5251 Maintenance Supplies Face Masks, Building Supplies 153.54$          

978 5430 Building Maintenance Fall Clean-up Landscaping 405.07$          

Total 590.89$          

972 5853 AV Materials Audiovisual Materials 21.98$            

Total 21.98$            

972 5210 Supplies Program Supplies, Winter Bingo Prizes 843.38$          

972 5852 Printed Materials Print Materials 11.00$            

972 5853 Audiovisual Materials Board Games, Puzzles, Audiovisual Materials 381.35$          

Total 1,235.73$       

971 5210 Supplies Wall Clock 12.96$            

972 5280 Small Tools & Equipment Acrylic Displays 119.09$          

974 5280 Small Tools & Equipment Acrylic Displays 147.53$          

976 5210 Supplies Printer Ink 149.85$          

976 5280 Small Tools & Equipment Acrylic Displays 210.79$          

976 5303 Seminars, Mtgs, & Conferences Holiday Meeting 124.01$          

976 5407 Advertising & Public Relations Beads and String 14.17$            

Total 778.40$          

Sharon Hrycewicz

972 5853 AV Materials Anything Emporium Items 419.99$          

973 5210 Supplies Program Supplies 40.98$            

973 5853 AV Materials Educational Toys and Puzzles 718.18$          

Total 1,179.15$       

Elizabeth Matkowski

Ian Knorr

Karen Bonarek

Cynthia Khatri

42



Traci Skocik

973 5210 Supplies Program Supplies 13.90$            

973 5853 AV Materials Educational Toys and Puzzles, Video Games 430.99$          

Total 444.89$          

Allyson Renell

973 5210 Supplies Children's Program Supplies 85.74$            

973 5303 Seminars, Mtgs, & Conferences Student ALA Membership 44.00$            

973 5852 Printed Materials Print Materials 36.68$            

Total 166.42$          

Christine Lees

974 5210 Supplies Office Supplies 268.10$          

Total 268.10$          

Paul Regis

973 5280 Small Tools & Equipment TV for Children's from the Friends of the Library 531.24$          

975 5210 Supplies Department Supplies 627.30$          

975 5770 Capital Equipment Monitors 173.98$          

975 5880 Intangible Assets Zoom, Google, Libsyn, Wasabi, GoToMeeting, Chrome 950.29$          

Total 2,282.81$       

Grace Goodwyn

Total -$                 

Jen Ryjewski

Total -$                 

Amanda Klenk

972 5210 Supplies Teen Program Supplies, Winter Bingo Prizes 1,170.00$       

972 5315 Professional Services Cricut Subscription 95.88$            

972 5852 AV Materials Print Materials 14.99$            

Total 1,280.87$       

Van McGary

971 5308 Staff Recognition Retirement Party Meal 237.60$          

972 5210 Supplies Program Supplies, Office Supplies 363.74$          

972 5852 Print Materials Print Materials 148.95$          

972 5853 AV Materials Video Games, Rokus, Streaming Services,  Audiovisual Materials 2,243.39$       

Total 2,993.68$       

Lucas McKeever

977 5210 Supplies Department Supplies 456.04$          

977 5280 Small Tools & Equipment Earplugs 203.58$          

977 5303 Seminars, Mtgs, & Conferences ALA Membership Renewal 321.78$          

Total 981.40$          

43



Amanda Blau

973 5210 Supplies Program Supplies 644.20$          

973 5853 AV Materials Winter Bingo Prizes 344.55$          

Total 988.75$          

Library Credit Card December 2022 Totals 15,346.50$    

44



 

PAYROLLS FOR NOVEMBER 2022

NOVEMBER 4 $129,043.29

NOVEMBER 18 $129,655.61

         

TOTAL NOVEMBER 2022 PAYROLLS $258,698.90

45



 

 

December 2022 Financial Report 

 

The following will be distributed at the meeting: 

 December 2022 Library Fund Balance Report (unaudited) 

 December 2022 Revenue Report 

 December 2022 Capital Replacement Fund Expenditure Report 

 December 2022 Operating Fund Expenditure Report 

46



12/31/2022

Fund 805 Fund 821

Library fund

Building & 

Equipment 

Replacement 

Fund

CASH & INVESTMENTS 1,296,894$      739,593$           

FUND BALANCE 1,233,530        738,520$           

DOWNERS GROVE LIBRARY  



ACCOUNT ACCOUNT NAME

ADJUSTED 

ESTIMATE REVENUE YTD RECEIVED BALANCE % RCVD
80520000 410100                                        CURRENT PROPERTY TAXES        5,862,439.00 26,552.23 5,868,942.19 -6,503.19 100.11%
80520000 410900                                        PRIOR YEAR PROPERTY TAXES     100.00 0 0 100.00 0.00%
80520000 431300                                        PERSONAL PROPERTY REPLACE TAX 60,000.00 14,598.41 226,114.70 -166,114.70 376.86%
80590971 441000                                        SALES OF MATERIALS            2,000.00 1 4,761.44 -2,761.44 238.07%
80590971 450200                                        CHARGES FOR SERVICES          10,000.00 599.29 42,045.78 -32,045.78 420.46%
80590971 450900                                        FEES FOR NON-RESIDENTS        8,000.00 1,752.00 18,157.00 -10,157.00 226.96%
80590971 457100                                        RENTAL FEES                   2,000.00 0 1,810.00 190.00 90.50%
80590971 458100                                        FINES                         0.00 25.5 1,316.68 -1,316.68
80590971 459000                                        COST RECOVERED FOR SERVICES   8,500.00 455.22 11,228.85 -2,728.85 132.10%
80590971 461000                                        FEDERAL, OPERATIONAL GRANTS   0.00 0 5,789.00 -5,789.00
80590971 462000                                        STATE, OPERATIONAL GRANTS     72,589.00 121.14 103,576.27 -30,987.27 142.69%
80590971 463000                                        SPECIAL GRANTS                0.00 0 750 -750.00
80520000 471100                                        INVESTMENT INCOME             2,500.00 0 22,528.20 -20,028.20 901.13%
80520000 471200                                        INVEST INC-PROPERTY TAXES     0.00 0 514.69 -514.69
80590971 482000                                        CONTRIBUTIONS, OPERATING      5,000.00 8,043.82 22,168.24 -17,168.24 443.36%

TOTAL REVENUE 6,033,128.00 52,148.61 6,329,703.04 -296,575.04 104.92%

REVENUE BY OBJECT REPORT
12/1/2022 THROUGH 12/31/2022



OBJECT                        ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

ORIGINAL 

APPROPRIATION EXPENDITURES
YTD 

EXPENDED

AVAILABLE 

BUDGET % USED

587000 CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 411,600.00 4,619.79 384,070.55 27,529.45 93.30

EXPENDITURE BY OBJECT REPORT

12/1/2022 THROUGH 12/31/2022

Capital Replacement Fund



OBJECT                        ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
ORIGINAL 

APPROPRIATION EXPENDITURES YTD EXPENDED

AVAILABLE 

BUDGET % USED

510100 SALARIES, EXEMPT 1,733,543.38 195,212.00 1,678,612.69 54,930.69 96.80

511100 SALARIES, NON-EXEMPT 338,730.61 57,575.06 436,566.23 -97,835.62 128.90

511900 PART-TIME EMPLOYEE WAGES 1,286,018.09 125,659.30 1,147,420.23 138,597.86 89.20

513100 IMRF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS 240,632.68 27,629.12 237,126.21 3,506.47 98.50

513300 MEDICARE CONTRIBUTIONS 48,695.16 5,423.47 46,572.81 2,122.35 95.60

513400 SOCIAL SECURITY CONTRIBUTIONS 208,213.83 23,188.76 199,128.56 9,085.27 95.60

519000 LIFE INSURANCE 1,366.20 117.25 1,066.22 299.98 78.00

519100 HEALTH INSURANCE 496,336.20 35,838.82 418,616.85 77,719.35 84.30

519500 OPTICAL INSURANCE 1,925.91 155.98 1,818.29 107.62 94.40

519700 DENTAL INSURANCE 32,871.93 2,693.50 31,576.43 1,295.50 96.10

521000 SUPPLIES 108,750.00 7,285.66 96,153.27 12,596.73 88.40

525100 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 21,750.00 3,013.90 22,903.63 -1,153.63 105.30

528000 SMALL TOOLS & EQUIPMENT 29,900.00 3,147.96 22,842.84 7,057.16 76.40

530200 DUES AND MEMBERSHIPS 7,500.00 539.00 8,771.00 -1,271.00 116.90

530300 SEMINARS, CONFERENCES& MEETINGS 28,600.00 1,823.16 23,570.49 5,029.51 82.40

530800 RECOGNITION PROGRAM-STAFF 5,000.00 891.68 6,106.34 -1,106.34 122.10

531500 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 75,200.00 7,911.63 72,928.25 2,271.75 97.00

532200 PERSONNEL RECRUITMENT 1,000.00 163.01 1,610.75 -610.75 161.10

532300 SPECIAL LEGAL 6,000.00 10,395.00 17,227.50 -11,227.50 287.10

534600 DATA PROCESSING SERVICES 119,495.00 16,707.25 105,264.06 14,230.94 88.10

538000 PRINTING SERVICES 27,250.00 5,077.00 27,912.00 -662.00 102.40

539100 TELEPHONE 17,000.00 2,565.40 20,205.07 -3,205.07 118.90

539200 POSTAGE 29,000.00 111.00 22,949.97 6,050.03 79.10

540700 ADVERTISING & PUBLIC RELATIONS 19,500.00 2,295.06 16,284.10 3,215.90 83.50

542000 INSURANCE - OTHER POLICIES 70,700.00 0.00 61,940.00 8,760.00 87.60

543000 BUILDING MAINTENANCE SERVICES 92,000.00 13,911.69 99,788.37 -7,788.37 108.50

545000 CLEANING SERVICES 80,000.00 10,878.11 86,448.88 -6,448.88 108.10

546100 UTILITIES 24,250.00 10,195.67 45,947.17 -21,697.17 189.50

547000 OTHER EQUIPMENT R & M 11,500.00 750.00 18,792.52 -7,292.52 163.40

548100 RENTALS 18,000.00 2,225.00 17,898.21 101.79 99.40

562000 RECOVERABLES 4,000.00 61.80 227.95 3,772.05 5.70

569000 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 2,500.00 0.00 18,990.00 -16,490.00 759.60

EXPENDITURE BY OBJECT REPORT

12/1/2022 THROUGH 12/31/2022

Operating Fund



OBJECT                        ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
ORIGINAL 

APPROPRIATION EXPENDITURES YTD EXPENDED

AVAILABLE 

BUDGET % USED

EXPENDITURE BY OBJECT REPORT

12/1/2022 THROUGH 12/31/2022

Operating Fund

577000 CAPITAL EQUIPMENT (UNDER $20,000) 58,000.00 2,162.59 66,532.09 -8,532.09 114.70

585100 ELECTRONIC RESOURCES 245,800.00 33,012.35 261,485.47 -15,685.47 106.40

585200 PRINT MATERIALS 348,150.00 48,915.65 330,105.80 18,044.20 94.80

585300 AUDIOVISUAL MATERIALS 146,200.00 22,123.69 117,269.95 28,930.05 80.20

587000 CAPITAL EQUIPMENT (OVER $20,000) 60,000.00 0.00 104,402.55 -44,402.55 174.00

588000 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (SOFTWARE) 59,500.00 3,284.98 91,496.40 -31,996.40 153.80

Total 805 LIBRARY FUND 6,104,878.99 682,941.50 5,984,559.15 120,319.84 98.02



 

 

January 2023 Invoices 

FY 2022 

 

Included: 

 Capital Replacement Fund Invoice List 

 Capital Replacement Fund Invoices of Note 

 Operating Fund Invoice List 

 Operating Fund Invoices of Note 

 Credit Memo Edit List 

 December 2022 Payroll Report 

47



VENDOR # VENDOR NAME NUMBER OF INVOICES GROSS AMOUNT

8770 GRAINGER 2 1,072.68

GRAND TOTALS: 2 1,072.68

INVOICE LISTING - JANUARY 2023

Capital Replacement Fund

FISCAL YEAR 2022

48



INVOICES OF NOTE 

 

For the Board Meeting on January 25, 2023

Capital Replacement Fund

FISCAL YEAR 2022

8770 GRAINGER (CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS) $1,072.68

49



VENDOR # VENDOR NAME NUMBER OF INVOICES GROSS AMOUNT

21463 360CLEAN 1 5,350.00

10255 4IMPRINT, INC 1 548.51

21323 AIR CLEANING SPECIALIST 1 861.20

17676 AMANDA KLENK 1 28.55

18213 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC. 2 272.64

351 AMERICAN LIBRARY ASSOCIATION 1 550.00

16678 ANDREW COOK 1 232.79

403 AT&T 1 270.74

672 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS 7 529.47

16893 BIBLIOTHECA 1 944.94

829 BLACKSTONE AUDIOBOOKS 11 1,035.68

14684 CAVENDISH SQUARE PUBLISHING 1 186.03

1259 CCH, INCORPORATED 1 202.52

1264 CDW GOVERNMENT LLC 2 1,342.98

8323 CENGAGE LEARNING 5 512.22

1277 CENTER POINT PUBLISHING 1 312.81

1377 CHICAGO TRIBUNE 1 183.42

13235 CHILDREN'S PLUS, INC. 1 367.10

1459 CINTAS CORPORATION #344 1 74.33

2330 DOWNERS GROVE DOWNTOWN MGMT 1 275.00

2539 EBSCO SUBSCRIPTION SERVICES 1 5.27

9775 FINDAWAY WORLD, LLC 2 2,443.79

16977 GARVEY'S OFFICE PRODUCTS, INC. 2 175.93

13544 GOOGLE, INC. 1 990.00

3188 GRAHAM CRACKER COMICS, LTD 1 316.87

200094 HEARTLAND CABINET SUPPLY INC 1 2,919.00

200098 IMPERIAL BAG & PAPER CO LLC 2 638.89

3688 INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES, LLC 25 12,920.08

17442 JULIE MILAVEC 1 80.22

200131 KINGS III OF AMERICA LLC 2 89.53

4812 KLEIN, THORPE AND JENKINS LTD 1 6,795.00

4928 LAKESHORE LEARNING MATERIALS 1 198.33

18876 LIBRARY IDEAS, LLC 1 358.53

5333 MANUFACTURERS NEWS, INC. 1 238.90

5613 MEDLIN COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 1 281.94

5866 MIDWEST TAPE 11 8,117.73

6161 NICOR GAS 1 4,797.64

6295 ORKIN PEST CONTROL 1 135.00

12499 OVERDRIVE, INC. 3 10,735.35

18491 PEOPLEFACTS, LLC 1 31.27

7861 STEPHENS PLUMBING AND HEATING 1 493.75

3567 TECHNOLOGY MGMT REV FUND 1 126.00

6859 THRYV 1 16.23

13611 TRACI SKOCIK 1 81.70

16841 TSAI FONG BOOKS, INC. 3 579.55

11517 UNIQUE MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC 1 20.60

19196 VAN MCGARY 2 195.68

200087 WOLTER INC 1 1,041.39

200114 WRG WILLOW RIDGE GLASS & MIRROR 2 2,875.00

INVOICE LISTING - JANUARY 2023

Operating Fund

FISCAL YEAR 2022

50



VENDOR # VENDOR NAME NUMBER OF INVOICES GROSS AMOUNT

INVOICE LISTING - JANUARY 2023

Operating Fund

FISCAL YEAR 2022

9068 YONAN FLOOR COVERING 1 1,200.00

GRAND TOTALS: 116 72,980.10

51



INVOICES OF NOTE - OPERATING FUND

 

For Library Board Meeting on January 25, 2023

FISCAL YEAR 2022

17676 Amanda Klenk (Employee Reimbursement) $28.55

16678 Andrew Cook (Employee Reimbursement) $232.79

2330 Downers Grove Downtown Mgmt (Ice Sculpture) $275.00

17442 Julie Milavec (Employee Mileage Reimbursement) $80.22

4812 Klein, Thorpe and Jenkins, LTD (Legal Fees) $6,795.00

13611 Traci Skocik (Employee Reimbursement) $81.70

19196 Van McGary (Employee Reimbursement) $195.68

200114 WRG Willow Ridge Glass & Mirror (Window Installations/Replacement) $2,875.00

9068 Yonan Floor Covering (Elevator Carpet) $1,200.00

52



VENDOR # VENDOR NAME NUMBER OF CREDIT MEMOS GROSS AMOUNT

2539 EBSCO SUBSCRIPTION SERVICES 1 26.68

5866 MIDWEST TAPE 1 12.59

GRAND TOTALS: 2 39.27

CREDIT MEMO LISTING - JANUARY 2023

Operating Fund

FISCAL YEAR 2022

53



 

PAYROLLS FOR DECEMBER 2022

DECEMBER 2 $124,633.44

DECEMBER 16 $128,740.77

DECEMBER 30 $125,072.15

         

TOTAL DECEMBER 2022 PAYROLLS $378,446.36

54



 

 

January 2023 Invoices 

FY 2023 

 

Included: 

 Capital Replacement Fund Invoice List 

 Capital Replacement Fund Invoices of Note 

 Operating Fund Invoice List 

 Operating Fund Invoices of Note 

 Credit Memo Edit List 

 January 2023 Credit Card Report 

55



VENDOR # VENDOR NAME NUMBER OF INVOICES GROSS AMOUNT

5572 FIA CARD SERVICES, N.A. 1 2,003.22

14548 PRODUCT ARCHITECTURE + DESIGN 1 2,000.00

GRAND TOTALS: 2 4,003.22

INVOICE LISTING - JANUARY 2023

Capital Replacement Fund

FISCAL YEAR 2023

56



INVOICES OF NOTE 

 

For the Board Meeting on January 25, 2023

Capital Replacement Fund

FISCAL YEAR 2023

5572 FIA CARD SERVICES, N.A. (WORKROOM RENOVATION LIGHTING) $2,003.22

14548 PRODUCT ARCHITECTURE + DESIGN (WORKROOM CONSTRUCTION) $2,000.00

57



VENDOR # VENDOR NAME NUMBER OF INVOICES GROSS AMOUNT

200143 ALGONQUIN  AREA PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 1 179.00

18213 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC. 2 498.97

17992 ARTHUR J GALLAGHER RISK MGMT 1 7,566.00

672 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS 1 17.96

16893 BIBLIOTHECA 1 810.45

829 BLACKSTONE AUDIOBOOKS 2 70.00

7517 BOOKFLIX, SCHOLASTIC INC 1 1,884.00

18469 BRIAN MICHALSKI 1 300.00

8323 CENGAGE LEARNING 2 177.54

1277 CENTER POINT PUBLISHING 1 142.62

1377 CHICAGO TRIBUNE 1 139.42

20162 CITIBANK/CITI CARDS 1 145.82

2539 EBSCO SUBSCRIPTION SERVICES 1 2,639.00

5572 FIA CARD SERVICES, N.A. 13 5,003.58

17510 FIRST COMMUNICATIONS, LLC 1 551.09

200148 FREMONT PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 1 14.99

16977 GARVEY'S OFFICE PRODUCTS, INC. 4 646.02

18411 HAYES MECHANICAL 1 2,230.00

9880 IMAGE SYSTEMS & BUSINESS SOLUTIONS LLC 1 2,708.04

200098 IMPERIAL BAG & PAPER CO LLC 1 506.67

3688 INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES, LLC 20 6,637.22

15110 KATELYN VABALAITIS 1 30.66

17994 LIBRARIES OF ILL RISK AGENCY 1 50,871.93

5866 MIDWEST TAPE 4 1,992.88

19473 OC CREATIVE, INC 1 400.00

6361 PADDOCK PUBLICATIONS, INC. 1 1,160.60

14549 REACHING ACROSS ILLINOIS 2 9,079.00

19977 READSQUARED 1 995.00

14414 SHAW SUBURBAN MEDIA 1 65.00

12841 STEVEN FRENZEL 1 200.00

12698 SWAN 1 16,707.25

200113 THE BLACKBERRY COLLECTION LLC 1 2,250.00

8391 TODAY'S BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 1 1,245.00

13611 TRACI SKOCIK 1 20.14

385 TRANE U.S., INC. 1 1,774.50

18458 URBAN ELEVATOR SERVICE, LLC 1 225.00

GRAND TOTALS: 77 119,885.35

INVOICE LISTING - JANUARY 2023

Operating Fund

FISCAL YEAR 2023

58



INVOICES OF NOTE - OPERATING FUND

 

For Library Board Meeting on January 25, 2023

FISCAL YEAR 2023

200143 Algonquin Area Public Library District (Program Payment) $179.00

17992 Arthur J Gallagher Risk Mgmt (Workers Comp Renewal) $7,566.00

18469 Brian Michalski (Program Payment) $300.00

200148 Fremont Public Library District (Damaged Item Replacement Fee) $14.99

17994 Libraries of Ill Risk Agency (Annual Insurance Renewal) $50,871.93

14549 Reaching Across Illinois (Communico Renewal) $9,079.00

19977 ReadSquared (ReadSquared Subscription Renewal) $995.00

12841 Steven Frenzel (Program Payment) $200.00

12698 SWAN (Swan Quarterly Fees) $16,707.25

200113 The Blackberry Collection LLC (EDI Consulting Fees) $2,250.00

8391 Today's Business Solutions (Annual License Renewal) $1,245.00

59



VENDOR # VENDOR NAME NUMBER OF CREDIT MEMOS GROSS AMOUNT

2539 EBSCO SUBSCRIPTION SERVICES 3 137.57

3688 INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES, LLC 1 11.59

GRAND TOTALS: 4 149.16

CREDIT MEMO LISTING - JANUARY 2023

Operating Fund

FISCAL YEAR 2023

60



Library Credit Card Details for the January 25, 2023 Board Meeting

Julie Milavec

971 5308 Staff Recognition Admin Staff Lunch 82.90$            

Total 82.90$            

Katelyn Vabalaitis

971 5280 Small Tools & Equipment Garden Walk Bricks (will be reimbursed by Foundation) 96.26$            

971 5302 Dues & Membership Costco Annual Renewal 120.00$          

971 5308 Recognition Program-Staff Staff Social Committee Supplies 71.12$            

978 5391 Telephone Comcast Monthly Payment 488.78$          

Total 776.16$          

971 5870 Capital Equipment LED Kits for Workrooms (Capital Replacement Fund) 2,003.22$       

978 5210 Supplies Space Heater 55.49$            

Total 2,058.71$       

972 5852 Print Materials Print Materials 76.90$            

Total 76.90$            

972 5210 Supplies New Years Eve Bags 58.30$            

Total 58.30$            

Total -$                 

Sharon Hrycewicz

Total -$                 

Traci Skocik

973 5210 Supplies Program Supplies 35.09$            

973 5853 AV Materials Educational Toys and Puzzles, Video Games 312.25$          

Total 347.34$          

Allyson Renell

973 5210 Supplies Children's Program Supplies 61.74$            

973 5853 AV Materials Audiovisual Materials 44.84$            

Total 106.58$          

Christine Lees

971 5308 Recognition Program-Staff Board Recap Meeting Snacks 85.41$            

974 5210 Supplies Office Supplies, Desk Chair 826.70$          

Total 912.11$          

Paul Regis

973 5280 Small Tools & Equipment Flashlights 9.99$               

975 5880 Intangible Assets Zoom, Google, Libsyn, Wasabi, GoToMeeting 927.67$          

Total 937.66$          

Elizabeth Matkowski

Ian Knorr

Karen Bonarek

Cynthia Khatri

61



Grace Goodwyn

Total -$                 

Jen Ryjewski

971 5315 Professional Services Call-Em-All 10.71$            

Total 10.71$            

Amanda Klenk

972 5210 Supplies Teen Program Supplies, Gift Cards for Staff Picks Raffle 253.60$          

972 5852 Print Materials Print Materials 167.05$          

972 5853 AV Materials HDMI Cables, A/V Supplies 49.88$            

973 5853 AV Materials Craft Buttons 17.98$            

Total 488.51$          

Van McGary

Total -$                 

Lucas McKeever

977 5210 Supplies Department Supplies 362.44$          

Total 362.44$          

Amanda Blau

973 5210 Supplies Program Supplies 788.48$          

Total 788.48$          

Library Credit Card January 2023 Totals 7,006.80$       

62



Submitted by Library Director Julie Milavec 

DOWNERS GROVE PUBLIC LIBRARY 
BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 
JANUARY 25, 2023 
 

Agenda Item 8A 
 
Building Operations Department Presentation 
 
Building Operations Director Ian Knorr will briefly present the work of the Building 
Operations Department, including facilities management and how the library works with 
the Downers Grove Police Department to ensure a safe library environment. 
 
Recommended Action: None. 

63



Submitted by Library Director Julie Milavec 
 

DOWNERS GROVE PUBLIC LIBRARY 
BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 
JANUARY 25, 2023 
 
Agenda Item 8B 
 
Libraries Illinois Risk Agency (LIRA) Insurance Renewal – Property/Casualty and 
Workers Compensation 
 
The Libraries of Illinois Risk Agency (LIRA) is a member-driven organization. I serve as 
Vice-Chair of its Executive Committee. This comprehensive insurance package is 
tailored to the needs of public libraries in Illinois, with coverage that may be unavailable 
to or too costly for individual libraries on their own, such as cyber-liability coverage. As a 
member for over three years, the library is now eligible for return of self-insured 
retention for years in which the library participated and the pool performed well. A brief 
explanation of the pool’s structure will be given at the meeting, reviewing the 
informational materials about LIRA included in the packet. 
 
LIRA’s renewal for 2023 is well under the estimated 20% increase for which member 
libraries were advised to plan. The renewal premium is a total decrease of -3.26%, a 
decrease of 3% for the package that includes property, casualty, liability, crisis 
protection, cyber-liability, and volunteer coverage, an increase of 6% for the loss fund 
(self-insured retention), and -17% for workers compensation coverage. Decreases are 
attributable to changes in carriers, as well as an increase to the self-insured retention 
limit.  
 
Recommended Action: Approve the Libraries Illinois Risk Agency (LIRA) insurance 
package renewal in the amount of $58,524.71. 
 

   

 

64



65



66



67



68



69



© 2022 RISK PROGRAM ADMINISTRATORS

Trevor Smith | Assistant Program Director

Trevor_Smith@RPAdmin.com 

70



© 2022 RISK PROGRAM ADMINISTRATORS

2022-2023 Program Structure

2

$1,000 Maintenance 

Deductible

$100,000 SIR 

Per Occurrence

$1,000 Maintenance 

Deductible

$100,000 SIR 

Per Occurrence

Crime

Brit

$500,000

Per Occurrence 

General  Liability  

Brit/Lloyd’s 

$1,000,000 

Per Occurrence

$400,000 SIR 

Per Occurrence

Property 

Brit 

$600,000

Per Occurrence

Excess Liability

Hallmark

$5,000,000

Excess Liability

Evanston 

$5,000,000

Property General Liability Crime Coverages 

No Deductible

Loss Fund

LIRA

$702,500

Aggregate Stop Loss 

Protection

Brit

$2,000,000

Excess Property

Chubb

$250,000,000 
Per Occurrence 

Earthquake

$15,000,000 Sublimit

Per Occurrence/Aggregate 

Flood 

$15,000,000 Sublimit 

$2,500,000 Zone A

Per Occurrence/Aggregate 

71



© 2022 RISK PROGRAM ADMINISTRATORS

2022-2023 First Dollar Policies

3

Equipment 

Breakdown

Cyber 

Liability

Workers 

Compensation

Volunteer  

Accident
Gallagher Crisis 

Protect

Star Indemnity & 

Liability Company 

Accidental Death 

Benefit

$100,000

Accidental 

Dismemberment  

Benefit

$100,000

Accident Medical 

Expense Benefit

$50,000 (Primary)

$1,000,000

Aggregate Limit 

Weekly Accident 

Indemnity Benefits 

Weekly Maximum

$300 for a max of 26 

weeks

The Hartford

Coverage A –

Workers 

Compensation  

Statutory

Coverage B –

Employers Liability

Bodily Injury by 

Accident

$1,000,000

Bodily Injury by 

Disease Each 

Employee

$1,000,000

Federal Insurance 

Company (Chubb)

$2,500

Maintenance  

Deductible

Cowbell

Privacy Liability

$1,000,000

Regulatory Defense & 

Penalties

$1,000,000

Policy Aggregate

$5,000,000

$10,000

Maintenance  

Deductible

$10,000 per occurrence

$50,000 per occurrence 

civil commotion

2 hour waiting period acts 

of terrorism

24 deprivation as result 

of civil commotion

Lloyds

$1,000,000

Per Occurrence

$5,000,000 

Policy Aggregate

Cyber Extortion *

WITH MFA:

$1,000,000 Per Claim

Without MFA

$250,000 Per Claim

$150,000,000

Per Occurrence Limit

* Members without MFA: $250,000 Per Claim (25,000 Deductible) / 3,500,000 Aggregate

72



Submitted by Library Director Julie Milavec 
 

DOWNERS GROVE PUBLIC LIBRARY 
BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 
JANUARY 25, 2023 
 
Agenda Item 8C 
 
Bylaws Update 
 
As has been brought up at recent Board meetings, the biennial review of the library’s 
Policy Manual will be done in 2023. The first section of the Manual is the Bylaws, the 
rules by which the Board of Library Trustees operates. Serving our Public 4.0: 
Standards for Illinois Public Libraries includes Appendix C: Topics Recommended for 
Inclusion in Board Bylaws, a useful tool for this review.  
 
According to the current Bylaws, the process for their revision is: 
 
“1.8 Article 8. Amendments to the Bylaws 
These Bylaws may be altered, amended, or repealed and new Bylaws adopted by an 
affirmative vote of two-thirds of the appointed Board at a regular meeting, provided the 
following conditions have been met: 

1. An initial draft of proposed changes are presented to the Board at a regular 
meeting with discussion and suggested revisions sought; and 
2. The final text of amendments is sent to each Trustee with the agenda for a 
second regular meeting. 

A vote on the amended Bylaws may occur at the second regular meeting.” 
 
This agenda item is intended to clarify Trustee expectations and timeline for this 
process following discussion. 
 
Recommended Action: Discussion of the process to review and revise Bylaws and 
direction to staff on how to move forward. 
 

   

 

73



Submitted by Julie M. Milavec 
January 19, 2023 

DOWNERS GROVE PUBLIC LIBRARY 
BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 
JANUARY 25, 2023 
 
Agenda Item 10 
 
Librarian’s Report 
 
Five Stars for DGPL! 
Downers Grove Public Library was awarded 5 Stars in Library Journal’s “America’s Star 
Libraries: The LJ Index of Public Library Service 2022.” This places DGPL in the top ten 
public libraries in America in the $5 Million to 9.9 Million Expenditure Range category. 
DGPL received a 4 Star award in 2020. https://www.libraryjournal.com/page/star-
libraries-2022 
 
Chicagoans of the Year Feature 
The December 21, 2022 Chicago Tribune article “Chicagoans of the Year for Books: 
Librarians and library workers of Illinois fight for dignity during a year of challenges” 
featured me and four other librarians from around Chicagoland. The article can be found 
in the library’s Chicago Tribune Full Text database. 
https://dglibrary.org/research/research-categories/newspapers/ 
 
Strategic Planning 
ReThinking Libraries (RTL) held a kick-off meeting with the Management Team, 
reviewing their planning-to-plan documentation and beginning decision-making on the 
planning timeline. The Board of Library Trustees received these documents to review in 
anticipation of a discussion at the February Board Meeting. This spring, RTL will 
conduct a survey and hold events for community input. RTL then combines this input, 
along with demographic and use information about DGPL, into a Findings Book that is 
distributed to Trustees, staff, and key stakeholders. Those Trustees, staff, and 
community members attend a strategic planning retreat to refine the findings into a high-
level plan that includes a mission, vision, values, and goals. That high-level plan guides 
the development by staff of a 12-month activity plan to work toward those goals. 
 
Elevator Modernization Awaiting Final Inspection and Certification 
The elevator reopened on December 14, 2022 under a temporary permit. On January 
25, Johnson Controls will do the final relay programming on the elevator, followed by its 
final inspection. The full certification should be issued by the end of January. 
 
Workroom Renovation Project Continues 
During the week of January 30, Children’s Services will move into their newly renovated 
workroom and Access Services will move out of their workroom and into the Meeting 
Room. During this transition week, the Kids Program Room will be the staging area for 

74



Submitted by Julie M. Milavec 
January 19, 2023 

Children’s Services boxes as they organize their new space. Completion of the project 
remains on schedule for May 1. 
 
Freedom of Information Act Requests 
Fifty-five Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) requests were received in 2022. All FOIA 
requests and responses are now available at https://dglibrary.org/transparency/ under 
the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) Requests heading. One FOIA request has been 
received to date in January. 
 
Incident Reports 2018-2022 
A brief overview of the PITS incidents logged in its five years of use by the library is 
included in this packet. 
 
Illinois Public Library Per Capita Grant Application - Standards for Illinois Public 
Libraries Review 
At the meeting, I will give a brief overview of the Illinois Public Library Per Capita Grant 
Application, which consists of reporting on our progress toward meeting the standards 
checklists in Serving Our Public 4.0: Standards for Illinois Public Libraries. The 
application and written report are included in your packet. 
 

75

https://dglibrary.org/transparency/


Submitted by Library Director Julie Milavec 
 

2023 Illinois Public Library Per Capita Grant Application 
Serving Our Public 4.0: Standards for Illinois Public Libraries 
Checklist Review 
 
The Illinois Public Library Per Capita Grant application requires: “The Library Director 
and the Board of Trustees shall review the entirety of Serving Our Public 4.0: Standards 
for Illinois Public Libraries. To complete this application, refer to the checklist at the 
conclusion of each chapter.” Every Trustee received a copy of the Standards during 
their orientation or when the new edition was released in 2020. This review focuses on 
any standards not met and our progress toward meeting those standards. A long-
range/strategic plan appears throughout the checklists as a guide to various items, 
demonstrating the importance of such a plan to library operations and meeting the 
Illinois public library standards. 
 
Chapter 1: Core Standards 
Core 13: The library has a board-approved mission statement, a long-range/strategic 
plan, disaster prevention and recovery plan, collection management policy, personnel 
policy, technology plan, and other policies as appropriate to the library’s operation and 
regularly updates and maintains them as appropriate.  
 
Core 23: At least every five years, and more frequently if necessary, the library 
conducts a review to determine if the library is providing facilities, collections and 
services in a quantity, at a time, and in a manner that meets the needs of the 
community. 
 
During the pandemic, the Board of Library Trustees chose to extend the activities of 
Strategic Plan 2017-2020 into 2021. As part of Phase One implementation of the 
Discovery Report on diversity, equity, and inclusion work, an Equity Strategic Plan was 
developed and approved unanimously by the Board of Library Trustees in April 2022, 
expressly intended to be incorporated into a full strategic plan when developed later in 
2022. The Drag Queen Bingo controversy delayed the RFP for strategic planning 
consulting services and the selection of a consulting firm. The contract for strategic 
planning services was approved by the Board in November 2022. The project kick-off 
meeting was held in January 2023.  
 
During the strategic planning process and following the approval of the full strategic 
plan, Board and staff will review facilities, collections, and services to determine if they 
are being provided in a quantity, at a time, and in a manner that meets the needs of the 
community. The current workroom renovation project addressed facilities needs 
originally identified in the 2018 renovation planning and deferred due to cost. The 

76



Submitted by Library Director Julie Milavec 
 

project was subsequently added to the Capital Needs Assessment project list in July 
2021, with the project cost and timeline expected to span the 2022 and 2023 budget 
years. Following a facility review tour by the Board of Library Trustees in April 2022, the 
Board approved moving forward with project planning and budgeting. The project is 
currently underway, with an estimated completion date of May 1, 2023. 
 
Chapter 2: Governance and Administration 
● Library has a mission statement and a long-range/strategic plan. 
● Library board members attend local, regional, state, and national conferences 

pertinent to libraries when fiscally possible. 
 
Development of the new strategic plan is underway, following the hiring of a strategic 
planning consultant.  
 
Trustees receive information about local, regional, state, and national conferences 
pertinent to libraries, as well as access to training opportunities. Funds are available to 
support Trustee attendance at conferences and other training events. At this time, 
archived or on-demand training, such as that provided by Reaching Across Illinois 
Library System (RAILS) CE Archives and United for Libraries are preferred to in-person 
conferences and training. The libraryboard@dglibrary.org email group is now 
subscribed to the Illinois Library Association’s e-newsletter. Trustees are encouraged to 
subscribe to RAILS e-newsletters and follow United for Libraries on social media 
@ala_united @unitedforlibraries. 
 
Chapter 4: Access 
● The library provides the right amount of space of the right kind to meet the 

provisions of its long-range/strategic plan. 
● The library provides adequate, safe, well-lighted, and convenient parking during all 

hours of service. 
●  The library has the minimum required number of parking spaces. 
 
Again, development of the new strategic plan is underway, following the hiring of a 
strategic planning consultant.  
 
As a Village library located within the downtown, all parking is owned and controlled by 
the Village of Downers Grove. The library met the minimum number of parking spaces 
required at the time of its last expansion in 1999. Parking studies by the Village show 
adequate parking for the library and all downtown businesses within the downtown area. 
  

77

mailto:libraryboard@dglibrary.org
https://www.railslibraries.info/membership/my-lists


Submitted by Library Director Julie Milavec 
 

Chapter 5: Building Infrastructure and Maintenance / Appendix K: Facility Management 
Checklists 
● Parking lot resealing and restriping should be performed every one to three years. 
● Snow removal should be performed on an as-needed basis (either self-performed or 

contracted). 
● Parking lot: Perform patching, sidewalk repairs such as mud jacking, curb repairs, 

etc. as needed. 
 
As a Village library located within the downtown, all parking and most of the sidewalks 
and walkways around the library are owned and maintained by the Village of Downers 
Grove. The library is responsible for the maintenance of the staff entrance area and 
ADA-accessible walkway along the north exterior wall of the building. Snow removal for 
parking lots and most of the sidewalks and walkways around the library is contracted by 
the Village of Downers Grove. Library staff remove snow from the staff entrance area 
and ADA-accessible walkway along the north exterior wall of the building and provide 
any additional snow removal needed on areas maintained by the Village’s snow 
removal contractor. Capital projects are outlined in the Capital Needs Assessment 
Report 2017-2027, which guides budgeting. This plan is annually reviewed and 
updated. Items added since the initial report include elevator modernization and 
workroom renovations. A full reassessment of capital needs will be conducted within the 
next 3-5 years. 
 
Chapter 9: Public Services: Reference and Reader’s Advisory Services / Readers’ 
Advisory Service Checklist 
● Staff members who are responsible for reader’s advisory service in their library join 

at least one community organization, club, or council. 
 
Multiple staff across departments and from all levels of the organization hold some 
responsibility for Readers' Advisory Service. For example, the Staff Picks lobby display 
for January 2023 was curated by Circulation Clerk Melissa Troy, with oversight from the 
Staff Picks committee. Staff is encouraged to participate in community organizations but 
participation by all staff involved in readers’ advisory is not feasible under our current 
model. 

78



Page 1

Illinois State Library 

ILLINOIS PUBLIC LIBRARY PER CAPITA AND  
EQUALIZATION AID GRANT APPLICATION 

As required by The Illinois Library System Act (23 Ill. Adm. Code 3030.200 (a)(2)(I) and (J)), to be eligible for funding, the 
applying public library shall have completed the Illinois Public Library Annual Report (IPLAR) and the annual certification 
process to confirm eligibility for grants administered by the Illinois State Library. 

The Library Board of Trustees agrees to expend the funds received for the purposes outlined in the application as ap-
proved by the Illinois State Library, and as stipulated by the Illinois Library Systems Act (75 ILCS 10/8 and 10/8.1) and Illi-
nois State Library Grant Programs (23 Ill. Adm. Code 3035.115 and 3035.135). 

The Library Board of Trustees affirms that all grant funds received as a result of this application shall be used to provide 
public library service to its community by supplementing the library’s regular budget and that it will not reduce, nor cause 
to have reduced, the public library’s levy in the current or next fiscal year. 

The Library Board of Trustees agrees that the Illinois State Library or its designee shall have the right to examine any of 
the records directly related to this grant. 

Legal Name of Library: _______________________________________________________________________________ 

Library’s Control Number:  ________________  Branch Number:  ________________  Today’s Date:  ________________   

Contact information of the person completing this grant application: 

Preparer’s Name: __________________________________    _________________________________________  

Preparer’s Title:   _____________________________________________________________________________ 

Preparer’s Phone Number:_______________________________________________________________________  

Preparer’s Email Address:________________________________________________________________________  

By checking this box, I certify: 1) that I have the authority to submit this application on behalf of the Library 
Board of Trustees, and 2) that the statements herein are true, complete and accurate to the best of my knowl-
edge. The Library Board of Trustees is aware that any false, fictitious or fraudulent statements or claims may be 
subject to civil, criminal or administrative penalties.

JESSE WHITE • Secretary of State & State Librarian 
Illinois State Library, Gwendolyn Brooks Building 

300 South Second Street, Springfield, IL 62701-1796 

(First Name) (Last Name) 

 Printed by authority of the State of Illinois. November 2020 – 1 – LD A 179.10
79



Changes in the population count for the eligible service area must be documented and supporting information that details 
the increase or decrease shall be submitted electronically with this application.  Documentation must include one of the 
following: 
 

A U.S. Census certification (e.g., correction or special census) that has been filed with the Office of the Secretary of •
State Index Department prior to submission of the application. 
 
For population changes, annexations or disconnects that are typically not documented by the U.S. Census, the library •
must submit appropriate and substantial supporting information, including a certified population count.  Examples in-
clude, but are not limited to: legal documentation from an appropriate municipal corporate authority or a library dis-
trict’s referenda questions and certified results. 

 
If the population has not changed, no additional documentation is necessary.  
 
Service Area Population ________________    
 
Part I.  Review of Serving Our Public 4.0: Standards for Illinois Public Libraries (© Illinois Library Association, 2019) 
 
To be eligible for a per capita grant, a public library shall show that it will either meet or show progress toward meeting 
the Illinois library standards as most recently adopted by the Illinois Library Association (75 ILCS 10/8.1). 
 
A grant applicant with below standard performance levels must raise or improve its performance levels in relation to the 
standards according to the objectives, time frames and priorities the library shall state in the application and which are 
consistent with the terms of the plan of service of the system of which it is a member. (23 ILAC 3035.115) 
 
The Library Director and the Board of Trustees shall review the entirety of Serving Our Public 4.0: Standards for Illinois 
Public Libraries. To complete this application, refer to the checklist at the conclusion of each chapter. 
 
 
Chapter 1: Core Standards 
      

Explain the objectives and priorities to be undertaken during the ensuing year to improve the library’s performance levels 
where the chapter’s standards are not met or the library is making progress toward meeting those standards. If the library 
meets all Core Standards, please indicate. (150 word limit) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2

80



Chapter 2: Governance and Administration 

Explain the objectives and priorities to be undertaken during the ensuing year to improve the library’s performance levels 
where the chapter’s standards are not met or the library is making progress toward meeting those standards. If the library 
meets all components of the Governance and Administration checklist, please indicate. (150 word limit) 

Chapter 3: Personnel 

Explain the objectives and priorities to be undertaken during the ensuing year to improve the library’s performance levels 
where the chapter’s standards are not met or the library is making progress toward meeting those standards. If the library 
meets all components of the Personnel checklist, please indicate. (150 word limit) 

Page 3

81



Chapter 4: Access 
 
Explain the objectives and priorities to be undertaken during the ensuing year to improve the library’s performance levels 
where the chapter’s standards are not met or the library is making progress toward meeting those standards. If the library 
meets all components of the Access checklist, please indicate. (150 word limit) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Chapter 5: Building Infrastructure and Maintenance 
 
Explain the objectives and priorities to be undertaken during the ensuing year to improve the library’s performance levels 
where the chapter’s standards are not met or the library is making progress toward meeting those standards. If the library 
meets all components of the Building Infrastructure and Maintenance checklists, please indicate. (150 word limit) 

Page 4

82



Chapter 6: Safety 

Explain the objectives and priorities to be undertaken during the ensuing year to improve the library’s performance levels 
where the chapter’s standards are not met or the library is making progress toward meeting those standards. If the library 
meets all components of the Safety checklist, please indicate. (150 word limit) 

Chapter 7: Collection Management 

Explain the objectives and priorities to be undertaken during the ensuing year to improve the library’s performance levels 
where the chapter’s standards are not met or the library is making progress toward meeting those standards. If the library 
meets all components of the Collection Management checklist, please indicate. (150 word limit) 

Page 5

83



Chapter 8: System Member Responsibilities and Resource Sharing 
 
Explain the objectives and priorities to be undertaken during the ensuing year to improve the library’s performance levels 
where the chapter’s standards are not met or the library is making progress toward meeting those standards. If the library 
meets all components of the System Membership Responsibilities and Resource Sharing checklist, please indicate. (150 
word limit) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Chapter 9: Public Services: Reference and Reader’s Advisory Services 
 
Explain the objectives and priorities to be undertaken during the ensuing year to improve the library’s performance levels 
where the chapter’s standards are not met or the library is making progress toward meeting those standards. If the library 
meets all components of the Reference Service checklist and the Reader’s Advisory Service checklist, please indicate. (150 
word limit) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 6

84



Chapter 10: Programming 

Explain the objectives and priorities to be undertaken during the ensuing year to improve the library’s performance levels 
where the chapter’s standards are not met or the library is making progress toward meeting those standards. If the library 
meets all components of the Programming checklist, please indicate. (150 word limit) 

Chapter 11: Youth/Young Adult Services 
Explain the objectives and priorities to be undertaken during the ensuing year to improve the library’s performance levels 
where the chapter’s standards are not met or the library is making progress toward meeting those standards. If the library 
meets all components of the Youth/Young Adult Services checklist, please indicate. (150 word limit) 

Page 7

85



Chapter 12: Technology 
Explain the objectives and priorities to be undertaken during the ensuing year to improve the library’s performance levels 
where the chapter’s standards are not met or the library is making progress toward meeting those standards. If the library 
meets all components of the Technology checklist, please indicate. (150 word limit) 

Chapter 13: Marketing, Promotion and Collaboration 
Explain the objectives and priorities to be undertaken during the ensuing year to improve the library’s performance levels 
where the chapter’s standards are not met or the library is making progress toward meeting those standards. If the library 
meets all components of the Marketing, Promotion and Collaboration checklist, please indicate. (150 word limit) 

Page 8

86



Part II: Planned Use of Grant Funds 

Describe objectives and priorities for use of grant monies to meet or improve performance levels in relation to the standards 
in Serving Our Public 4.0: Standards for Illinois Public Libraries (23 ILAC 3035.115). Use general categories in identifying 
actual planned expenditures. Do NOT include monetary figures or specific brands. 

Page 9

87



ilsos govilsos.gov
 Illinois Public Library Per Capita Grant Expenditures Report 

  
 

Control Number: ____________________________________ City: _________________________________________ 

Library Name: ____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Exact amount of Per Capita Grant received in Fiscal Year 2021: ___________________________________________ 
 
Report on the use of grant monies to meet or improve performance levels in relation to the standards in Serving Our Public 4.0: 
Standards for Illinois Public Libraries (23 ILAC 3035.115). Do not include monetary figures or specific brands. 
 
Check the applicable standard(s) based on use of grant funds. For each chapter checked 1) briefly report how grant funds were 
used and 2) how this helped meet or make progress towards meeting the standard. 

   ❏  Core Standards — Chapter 1 

             

      ❏ Governance and Administration — Chapter 2 

 

      ❏ Personnel — Chapter 3 

 

      ❏ Access — Chapter 4 

 

      ❏ Building Infrastructure and Maintenance — Chapter 5 

 

            

Illinois Public Library Per Capita and Equalization Aid Deadline – on or before Jan. 30 

JESSE WHITE • Secretary of State & State Librarian 
Illinois State Library, Gwendolyn Brooks Building 

300 S. Second St., Springfield, IL 62701-1796 
 

 Printed by authority of the State of Illinois. August 2022 – 1 – LD A 274.3 88



   ❏ Safety — Chapter 6 

 

   ❏ Collection Management — Chapter 7 

 

      ❏ System Member Responsibilities and Resource Sharing — Chapter 8 

 

      ❏ Public Services: Reference and Reader’s Advisory — Chapter 9 

 

      ❏ Programming — Chapter 10 

 

 

      ❏ Youth/Young Adult Services — Chapter 11 

 

      ❏ Technology — Chapter 12  

       

      ❏ Marketing, Promotion, and Collaboration — Chapter 13

Illinois Public Library Per Capita and Equalization Aid Deadline – on or before Jan. 30 

89



Patron Incident Tracking System (PITS) 
Monthly Counts 2018-2022 
 

The Patron Incident Tracking System was implemented in May 2018 and came into full 
use by staff in January 2019. Assistant Director Jen Ryjewski input incident reports from 
January through August 2018 into the system retroactively. The Person In Charge (PIC) 
model of safety was formalized in August 2018, with Person In Charge training and a 
Person In Charge Manual. At that time, PIC staff began to utilize PITS for incident 
reporting. PITS is used to track incidents of all types. In addition to behavioral incidents, 
it is used to track patron and staff incidents from a slip-and-fall in the parking lot to 
patrons calling 911 for their own health emergencies. 

Months shaded in gray indicate that the library was closed to the public for at least a 
portion of the month. 

The first month with 20 or more incidents was December 2018. 

The highest number of incidents in a single month was 34 in August 2022. 

The library reopened to the public in July 2020, with an elevated number of incidents 
directly attributed to the indoor mask mandate in Illinois. When the indoor mask 
mandate was lifted in March 2022, the number of incidents per month began to 
decrease before rising again in the summer months of 2022. The average number of 
incidents during the mask mandate was 20.12. The average number since the mask 
mandate was lifted is 17.2. Since the mask mandate was lifted, only June and August of 
2022 have logged 20 or more incidents. 

The lowest number of incidents in a month since the pandemic began was 5 in 
September 2022, followed by 9 in December 2022. This excludes months when the 
library was closed to the public. 

Five incidents have occurred in January 2023, through the 18th. 

 

90



1

Month Year
Incident 
Count

Perpetrator 
Count

Victim 
Count

Witness 
Count

Infraction 
Count

Average 
Incidents 
Per 
Month 18.17

January 2022 24 15 1 0 29
February 2022 22 17 1 0 32
March 2022 16 9 1 0 24
April 2022 12 13 0 1 20
May 2022 19 17 2 0 24
June 2022 23 16 1 0 29
July 2022 18 13 0 0 24
August 2022 34 20 2 3 35
September 2022 5 1 0 0 10
October 2022 17 12 3 0 22
November 2022 19 12 3 5 24
December 2022 9 10 0 0 20

Month Year
Incident 
Count

Perpetrator 
Count

Victim 
Count

Witness 
Count

Infraction 
Count

Average 
Incidents 
Per 
Month 20.50

January 2021 8 4 0 2 12
February 2021 28 20 1 3 20
March 2021 19 17 2 0 20
April 2021 19 14 1 5 19
May 2021 15 9 2 2 17
June 2021 24 11 4 5 14
July 2021 23 11 4 1 21
August 2021 20 14 1 0 23
September 2021 24 16 2 1 24
October 2021 28 20 3 4 27
November 2021 19 13 3 0 26
December 2021 19 13 2 1 24

Patron Incident Tracking System (PITS)
Monthly Counts 2018-2022

Monthly_Summary_2022-01-01_thru_2022-12-31

Monthly_Summary_2021-01-01_thru_2021-12-31

91



2

Patron Incident Tracking System (PITS)
Monthly Counts 2018-2022

Month Year
Incident 
Count

Perpetrator 
Count

Victim 
Count

Witness 
Count

Infraction 
Count

Average 
Incidents 
Per 
Month 13.08

January 2020 15 6 6 6 14
February 2020 10 4 0 2 11
March 2020 7 4 1 0 11
April 2020 1 0 0 0 1
May 2020 0 0 0 0 0
June 2020 1 1 0 0 2
July 2020 21 18 1 8 12
August 2020 19 16 2 3 22
September 2020 29 29 0 11 17
October 2020 23 20 0 4 19
November 2020 20 17 0 3 22
December 2020 11 8 0 2 15

Month Year
Incident 
Count

Perpetrator 
Count

Victim 
Count

Witness 
Count

Infraction 
Count

Average 
Incidents 
Per 
Month 10.58

January 2019 8 7 1 2 13
February 2019 7 5 0 0 12
March 2019 15 7 0 1 20
April 2019 12 9 2 1 18
May 2019 3 1 1 3 6
June 2019 19 14 3 3 20
July 2019 15 10 3 2 12
August 2019 14 8 0 0 17
September 2019 8 6 1 0 16
October 2019 13 13 0 0 17
November 2019 5 7 0 0 7
December 2019 8 6 0 0 13

Monthly_Summary_2019-01-01_thru_2019-12-31

92



3

Patron Incident Tracking System (PITS)
Monthly Counts 2018-2022

Month Year
Incident 
Count

Perpetrator 
Count

Victim 
Count

Witness 
Count

Infraction 
Count

Average 
Incidents 
Per 
Month 7.08

January 2018 7 5 1 0 12
February 2018 11 5 3 2 13
March 2018 2 1 0 0 6
April 2018 1 2 0 0 2
May 2018 4 2 0 0 8
June 2018 4 3 1 0 7
July 2018 3 3 0 0 8
August 2018 5 11 0 0 8
September 2018 10 5 3 4 11
October 2018 4 3 1 2 5
November 2018 14 14 3 3 12
December 2018 20 13 5 10 18

Monthly_Summary_2018-01-01_thru_2018-12-31

93



1/19/2023

Date / Time  (60 or 90 min. 
sessions each with travel and 

meal time allowed as 
appropriate)

Meeting Description                           
(Please include name of meeting and who will 

attend, titles, etc.)
Meeting Location                       

(Please include location and address) Notes / Additional Details
TUESDAY

10/11/11 (3 - 4:30 p.m.)
Pre-Mtg Consult and Tour with Director, 
etc. Director's Office, Library Tour library and prep for Kick-Off Mtg, focus groups, etc.

10/11/11 (5 - 6:30 p.m.) Library General Staff Focus Group Community Room  1st floor All Staff minus supervisors

10/11/2011 (7 - 8:30 p.m.) General Misc. Adult Focus Group Large Meeting Room 2nd floor
WEDNESDAY

10/12/2011 (10 - 11 a.m.) General Misc. Adult Focus Group Large Meeting Room 2nd floor

10/12/2011 (12 noon - 1 p.m.) LUNCH

10/12/2011 (4:30 - 5:15pm)
Teen Advisory Board Focus Group (ages 13 - 
18) plus general Teen Invite Community Room 1st floor

10/12/2011 (5:30 - 6:30 p.m.) DINNER

10/12/2011 (6:30 - 7:30 p.m.)
Business Community / Chamber of 
Commerce City Council Chamber

10/12/2011 (7:30-8:30) Library Board Focus Group Board Room 1st floor
THURSDAY

10/13/2011 (8 - 9 am) Stakeholders Breakfast Meeting John's Diner (across from City Hall) Village, Township, School and Park District officials

10/13/2011 (10:30 a.m. - 11:30 
am)

Parents & Caregivers Focus Group 
(including homeschool parents) Children's Dept 2nd floor

10/12/2011 (11:30A to 1:30 
p.m.) Lunch & Library Supervisory Focus Group Community Room  1st floor Include all "supervisors" minus Director

10/13/2011 (1:30 - 2:30 p.m.)
Seniors and General Misc. Adult Focus 
Group Large Meeting Room 2nd floor

ReThinking Libraries: SAMPLE Focus Groups and Stakeholder Appointments
SAMPLE

94



ReThinking Libraries, LLC  
Last revised: 2021 

 

Strategic Planning  
Documentation Checklist 

 
 
NOTE: Only provide the documentation you already have, if you do not have something let us know 
and we can discuss. 
 

Email these documents and any questions related to them to RTL@ReThinkingLibraries.Org 
Note that additional information may be requested throughout the duration of this project. 

 

Information Request Descriptions Date Given 
to RTL 

1. Your 3 most recently filed Annual Reports, with your 2019 Annual Report being the most 
important (last pre-Covid data set)  
 

Client Comments:  
 

 

2. Staff Info: Organizational Chart and Staff Roster for the Library   
• List of staff positions, including full-time and part-time 
• Include FTE information as possible 
• Include any information related to future staffing plans, changes, etc. 
• Include breakdowns by department and divisions as relevant 

 
Client Comments: 

 

3. Completed Collection Analysis Spreadsheet form.  
 
This is a key planning document (provided by RTL) and will include all your 
collection counts as well as corresponding circulation statistics.  

 
Client Comments: 

 

4. Any usage statistics for the library that your feel are useful that aren’t already in the 
annual report.  These are most common for multi-location libraries since outlet 
breakdown data is typically not reported in most state reports. 

• Further Door counts/visits breakdowns 
• Number of computers and computer use stats beyond what is reported to the 

state 
• Wi-Fi usage & Website stats 
• Information/reference statistics by department 
• Number of programs by age group and program attendance 
• Library hours/schedule 
• Any other statistics: in library or out of library services, outreach, etc. 
• Other 

 
Client Comments: 

 

5. Copies of any previous strategic plans, survey results, library studies, 
city/county/community strategic plans, city/county/community surveys (e.g., time and 
motion studies, process analysis studies, etc.) 

 
Client Comments: 

 

 

95



Last rev: Version X

Collection Holdings Circulation
Turnover 

Rate
% of Total 
Collection

% of Total 
Circulation

% Estimated 
on Shelf

Adult
Adult Popular Library

New Fiction 0 0 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0%
New Non Fiction 0 0 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0%
DVDs 0 0 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0%
CDs 0 0 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0%
Audiobooks 0 0 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0%
ADULT POPULAR  TOTAL 0 0 #DIV/0!

General Adult Collection
Fiction 0 0 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0%
Biography 0 0 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0%
Large Print 0 0 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0%
Non-Fiction 0 0 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0%

GENERAL ADULT TOTAL 0 0 #DIV/0!
"Non-Circulating" - includes Local History, Genealogy, Reference, etc. 

Reference 0 0 100%

ADULT TOTAL 0 0 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

Children (Ages 0 - 12)
Children's Popular Library

J New Books 0 0 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0%
J DVDs 0 0 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0%
J Audiobooks 0 0 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0%

J Popular Library Total 0 0 #DIV/0!
Early Literacy

Picture Books 0 0 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0%
Board books 0 0 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0%
Easy Readers 0 0 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0%

Early Literacy Total 0 0 #DIV/0!

Young School Aged and Pre-Teen 0%
J Fiction 0 0 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0%
J Graphic Novels / Manga 0 0 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0%
J Non-Fiction 0 0 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0%
J Bio 0 0 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0%
J Music CD 0 0 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0%

Upper Level Total 0 0 #DIV/0!

Library Service Population

Collection Analysis - 
Holdings Date:                  :: Circulation Date: Any Recent 12 Month Period
Estimated on Shelf Date: 

                                       1,000 

96



CIRCULATING CHLIDREN'S 
TOTAL 0 0 #DIV/0!
J Reference (non-circulating) 0 0

CHILDREN'S TOTAL 0 0 #DIV/0!
Teen (Ages 13 - 18)
New Teen Books 0 0 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
Teen Audiobooks 0 0 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0%
Teen Fiction 0 0 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0%
Graphic Novels 0 0 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0%
TEEN TOTAL 0 0 #DIV/0!
TOTAL COLLECTION 0 0 #DIV/0!

Per Capita Estimates: 0.0 0.0

97



E-Materials
ebooks - Fiction 0 0

ebooks -Non-Fiction 0 0
eaudiobooks - Fiction 0 0
eaudiobooks - Non-fiction 0 0

Adult Total Ebook 0 0
J ebooks - Fiction 0 0
J ebooks - Non-fiction 0 0
J eaudio - Fiction 0 0
J eaudio - Non-fiction 0 0

Children's Total Ebook 0 0
Teen ebooks - Fiction 0 0
Teen ebooks - Non-fiction 0 0
Teen eaudiobooks - Fiction 0 0
Teen eaudiobooks - Non-fiction 0 0

Teen Total Ebook 0 0

Grand Total Ebook 0 0

Ebooks % of Total Circulation #DIV/0!

98



DOWNERS GROVE PUBLIC LIBRARY 

BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

JANUARY 25, 2023 

 

Department Reports – November/December 2022 

 

Administration – Jen Ryjewski 

 Completed and submitted the final expenditure and performance reports for the 

State and Federal grants. 

 Wrote a piece for Discoveries highlighting our laptop kits, made possible by the 

State and Federal grants. 

 Met with the Programming Team and finished coordinating the plans for the 

Lunar Scavenger hunt, finalized the dates for Winter Bingo along with the prizes 

and raffles, narrowed down the potential Summer Reading themes with the 

winner to be determined by an all-staff vote, and decided on the Spring Break 

theme which will be True Crime. 

 Attended an Open House at Center for Creative Arts Therapy (CCAT), toured 

their new facility and met their amazing staff. CCAT hosts monthly wellness 

sessions for the DGPL staff. 

 Attended an HR Source webinar on the topic of Job Descriptions, focusing on the 

important, purpose, and key components of job descriptions and how to gather 

data and determine the criteria for each position. 

 Attended the Friends of the Library (FOL) meeting where they formally decided 

on the status of FOL; they discussed and approved the dissolution of the existing 

FOL group in order to become a committee for the DGPL Foundation. 

 Met with the Safety & Security Team. We decided on improvements to our 

Emergency Flip Charts to include evacuation procedures for each department 

and vendor and technical updates to the Emergency Manual. 

 Reviewed and scored the applicants’ resumes for the ATS manager position, and 

scheduled and wrote questions for both the first and second round interviews. 

 Assisted library colleague from a neighboring school with a Rails Library Chat, in 

which I discussed the challenges and/or opposition to the Drag Queen Bingo 

program, stances we take in supported historically marginalized populations 

(LGBTQIA+, Native Peoples, Asian-Americans, and Black people, most notably); 

and book displays 

 Thoroughly reviewed, edited, and updated library job descriptions for subsequent 

review by the Administration department and Equity Advisory Team. 

 Wrote a six month performance evaluation for a member of our management 

team.  

 Attended a group of lessons on Universal Class – one of our subscription 

databases – on Sensitivity Training in the workplace. 

  

99



Business Office – Katelyn Vabalaitis 

 Along with Business Office Assistant Scott Anderson, attended multiple Munis 

trainings at Village Hall. 

 Conducted two exit interviews for departing staff. 

 Worked with Village HR staff to administer Open Enrollment to all eligible staff 

using the new Employee Self Service module of Munis. Assisted staff with the 

new process and answered questions/troubleshot issues. 

 Worked with Library Director Julie Milavec and Scott Anderson to calculate 2023 

staff raises, create necessary documentation, and enter all of the raises in Munis 

software. 

 Scott Anderson created individual letters for each staff member detailing their 

pay raises and I proofed each letter before we distributed to staff.  

 Prepared for the first payroll run in Munis by running parallels and tests with 

Village staff. 

 With the elimination of paper timesheets due to the Munis transition, I created a 

new electronic timesheet system for the library, utilizing Google Sheets.  

 Participated in the interview for Adult & Teen Services Manager. 

 Along with Assistant Library Director Jen Ryjewski, continued to review job 

descriptions in preparation for sending them to HR Source. 

 

Adult & Teen Services – Van McGary 

 Adult programming highlights include: Music concert Holiday Treasures with the 

DG Music Club, Needle-Felted Owl craft, D&D Adventurer’s League, Next 

Chapter Book Club, Illinois Libraries Present Midwest Baking with Shauna Sever, 

and Grab N Go for Adults: Snowflake Book Folding and New Year’s Celebration. 

 Teen programming highlights include: Gallery unveiling of student work from 

View from Behind the Lens, Maker Kits: Legos, Winter Coloring, and Pom Pom 

Coasters, Pickup Programs: Let it Snow Winter Wreath and Winter Polymer Clay 

Critters, ACT/SAT Test Prep Roadmap, Exam Cram bags, and Make and Take: 

Gingerbread Salt Dough. 

 More improvements were made to various collections. Binge Boxes were moved 

by the DVD’s, prominently displayed on hooks on the endcaps. Video Games are 

now next to Board Games and Consumer Info is now next to Reference.  

 I went through the interview process for the ATS Manager position and am very 

thankful to be the new ATS Manager! 

 Started working on the job ads for the ATS Assistant Manager position and the 

ATS part-time Librarian position. I also started reviewing job descriptions. 

 I reviewed the overall 2022 budget for the department and updated 2023 

collection budgets for each selector. I also reviewed all of the library’s databases 

and renewed several contracts. 

100



 Worked with our social work interns to update our service finder bookmarks and 

assisted with information on local warming centers. I also completed the end of 

semester school evaluations for the social work interns. 

 

Children’s Services – Allyson Renell 

 November was Dino-vember in the Kids Room! We had a variety of fun activities 

all about dinosaurs, including: 

 I Spy a Dinosaur passive program where kids searched for our 

department dinosaur who was located somewhere in the room. Once 

spotted, kids reported her costume to desk staff and received a sticker. 

700 children participated throughout the month. 

 897 patrons (and staff) voted in our Favorite Dinosaur campaign that 

lasted through the entire month. The winner, Velociraptor, defeated 

runner-up Ankylosaurus by only three votes! 

 A visit from T-Rexplorers on November 5th that 102 patrons attended. 

Storytimes, crafts, Discovery Bags, and more were all dino-themed this 

month. Patrons and staff had a lot of fun and we look forward to doing it 

again! 

 Family Reading Night was held on November 17th and included stories and 

activities for the whole family. This program is encouraged by the State Library of 

Illinois in an effort to remind families to read together during the year. 

 The Kids Room welcomed two new staff members in November; Library 

Assistant Jenny Loan and Library Clerk Gianna Falco. We are very glad to have 

them! 

 Much of November was spent packing and planning for our workroom renovation 

that started on December 5th. Kids Room staff had to completely empty our 

workroom which involved a lot of packing and purging of materials. Ian was a 

huge help, moving all of our items from our workroom to our new home in the 

meeting room! 

 The Kids Room kicked off December with Winter Codebreakers; an interactive 

passive program that had kids hunting around the room and solving clues. Each 

clue gave the participant a letter that formed a word. Once kids had their word, 

they entered it into a letter lock. If the word was correct, the lock opened and kids 

received a prize! This activity was super fun and 355 kids participated throughout 

the month. 

 The Kids Room successfully moved into the meeting room where we will be for 

the duration of our portion of the renovation project. The project started on 

December 5th and we have been eagerly watching it progress! 

 The Kids Room again participated in the DG Downtown Management 

Association’s Gingerbread Man Hunt and acted as the prize pick-up location. We 

loved seeing kids come in to get their prizes and talk about finding all the 

gingerbread men. 

101



 During the natural lull that comes with the holiday season, the Kids Room took 

some time to do some shifting in the J Fiction and J Comics area. We changed 

our shelving in J Comics with some larger units to address a much needed 

spacing issue. We also undertook a large weeding project of the J Fiction 

collection and shifted within it to adjust crowding. 

 

Circulation Services – Christine Lees 

 November proved to be an extremely busy month with regards to foot traffic in 

the library, YTD we saw a 28% increase in foot traffic for November 2022 vs 

November 2021. 

 Our lockers saw an increase in traffic this month too, we completed 1,040 

checkouts via the lockers in November. 

 Circulation hosted LTQA candidate Angie Schultz in our department for 22 hours 

in November. It was a pleasure to show Angie around our department and to 

share our best practices with her. 

 Our Thanksgiving Day closing meant there was quite a bit of catch up on the 

Friday after, thankfully our staff rallied and completed all of the work within the 

day. 

 With the elevator under construction, shelvers made good use of the dumbwaiter 

to get book carts to the second floor. We appreciate the extra effort and work the 

shelvers have put in over this construction period to keep the items on the 

shelves on the second floor. 

 We hired a new Circulation Clerk to fill an open position, please welcome 

Meredith Kelly to DGPL! 

 I wanted to make special mention of the Hometown Heroes board in the lobby 

that highlighted local veterans. The display was wildly popular and many patrons 

expressed their appreciation for being able to recognize their loved ones’ service. 

Our very own Tricia Thompson, Circulation Supervisor, served in the US Army 

and we thank her for her service! 

 This month we ordered three new flatbed delivery carts to replace two of our 

aging carts. With the price of our traditional Demco flatbed carts skyrocketing, we 

investigated a new source for delivery carts and were able to purchase three new 

carts for the price of what we used to pay Demco for one. 

 We finished the year with 1,063,691 items circulated, a slight increase over the 

previous year! 

 Our locker holds had the highest monthly usage in December with 1,158 patrons 

utilizing the lockers this month! 

 We processed 233 registrations in December: 167 DGPL cards, 19 non-SWAN 

cards and 47 digital use cards were changed to full use cards. 

 We held our annual holiday get together, and lots of food, friendship and fun was 

had by all! Again this year our sock and ornament exchange was a big hit! 

102



 We close 2022 proud of the service we have offered all patrons. I want to thank 

the Circulation Team for their amazing dedication to the DGPL and the entire 

community. 

 

Information Technology – Paul Regis 

 FOIA requests continued to trickle in towards the end of the year. Admin/PR’s 

idea of adding links to all requests and responses to the transparency section of 

the library’s website was invaluable. This helped narrow down search terms and 

dates, resulting in less time spent on converting messages, redacting 

documents, as well as the overall deduplication process. 

 The IT Department welcomed back Computer Help Desk Supervisor Lauren 

Cantore Gonzalez from maternity leave. She was pleasantly surprised to find that 

IT did not devolve into a Lord of the Flies chiefdom. 

 IT Manager Paul Regis met with a Google rep to discuss options for when 

Google sunsets plans and add-ons that the library utilizes. The rep did not have 

much information as to when any changes will actually take effect, only that it will 

happen in 2023. Paul was able to gain eligibility for non-profit licensing, which will 

provide more features (more storage per user, Vault licenses for email retention, 

etc.) for about $2,000 less a year. Unfortunately, non-profit licenses/plans cannot 

be applied until the library’s current plan ends in April. 

 The temp public PC area in the café went pretty smoothly during the elevator 

modernization project. A huge shout out and thanks to the Computer Help Desk 

Associates, who immediately adapted to the new workflow and continued to 

provide excellent service in a limited space. 

 The IT department and the People’s Resource Center offered a combined 20 

classes over the course of November and December. 

 

Public Relations – Cindy Khatri 

 The PR team prepared signage and delivered messaging around the elevator 

project and workroom renovation project. 

 Cindy Khatri (PR Manager) met with Jodi Kolo from OPPL to discuss 

communications plans and how EDI intersects with them. 

 The Talk Story Storytelling event was a success with 20 participants and rave 

reviews. A big thank you to the Midwest SOARRING Foundation! The 

Conversation with Joseph Standing Bear was postponed due to unforeseen 

circumstances and is in the process of being rescheduled for early 2023. 

 Cindy and the PR team worked on the response to the November board meeting 

and concerns around safety/security at the library. This included communication 

with CBS. 

 Cindy and ATS Manager Van McGary authored the latest Anti-Hate Statement in 

support of the LGBTQ+ community following the Colorado Springs shooting. The 

PR team distributed the statement to the public. Feedback was overwhelmingly 

103



positive, with just under 30% of responses opposing or questioning the 

statement. 

 The Organization of the Month was Compudot; the library hosted a week-long 

donation drive for old computers to be refurbished for those without access to 

technology. The PR team and Admin decided to evaluate the Organization of the 

Month program after a discussion of the program’s successes and opportunities 

for improvement. Starting in February 2023, the library will put the program on 

hiatus to allow for strategic planning and restructuring. 

 Artwork by students from District 99 was featured in both the North and Café 

galleries. Many patrons commented on how talented the students are, and we 

have to agree! 

 The PR team prepared for the lunch of Winter Bingo. 

 The PR team began working on the January/February issue of Discoveries. 

Additionally, they researched how to include non-resident cardholders in the 

mailing, and the possibility of ink-jetting addresses onto the issue instead of 

utilizing the postal routes for delivery. Thank you to Circulation and the Village of 

Downers Grove for assisting in this process! 

 The ILA Best Practices Committee reached out to request input to help formulate 

their DEI toolkit. Cindy responded to the survey highlighting a few of the library’s 

EDI initiatives, including our anti-hate statements, pay equity, and the land 

acknowledgment. 

 The PR team finalized the new mailing process for the Discoveries Newsletter. 

The changes made resulted in a much more accurate mailing distribution, 

delivering to all households in the library district and non-resident cardholders. 

Additionally, this change allows patrons to go green and opt out of receiving the 

physical copy of Discoveries if they so choose. These changes were made 

without any increase in cost. 

 The PR team finalized, printed, and mailed the January/February 2023 issue of 

Discoveries. 

 The PR team launched the promotion of the Winter Bingo program through 

eNews, website, social media, and in-library signage. 

 Cindy and Adult Program Coordinator Karen Bonarek met with members from 

EQDG to discuss a future book discussion event. 

 The PR team coordinated closure announcements for the holidays and 

distributed the emergency closing announcements on December 21 

 End-of-year refills of library brochures and welcome packet content were 

ordered. 

 Promotional items were ordered for the upcoming year’s outreach program. New 

items include jar openers, crayons, and carabineer keychains. 

 Cindy participated in the interview process for the Adult and Teen Services 

Manager position. 

104



 OC Creative is working on substantial updates to the library’s Research 

Database section on the website, as well as a few accessibility changes. 

 Easterseals DuPage and Fox Valley was featured as the Organization of the 

Month. 

 Artwork by the Downers Grove Camera Club was displayed in both galleries. 

 The Cover to Cover Podcast featured a discussion with Mary Sustar, Adult and 

Teen Services Librarian about the new Staff Picks program. 

 

 

Access Services – Lucas McKeever 

 It is with a heavy heart that we are sharing that Thea Milder is no longer working 

for the library. For personal reasons, Thea has chosen to step down from her 

position and focus on her health and her family. She will be missed and her 

contributions to the library and the staff community will be felt for years to come. 

 Michelle worked closely with Kids Room staff this past month to allow for more 

collection maintenance to be done over the last few weeks of 2022 and first few 

of 2023. While down a staff member, we were generously supported by the Kids 

Room. Thank you to Iris Pardue and Megan Mark for sharing your time and 

talents with us and Allyson and Traci for suggesting and facilitating it! 

 Kelly worked with Kira and ATS staff to reclassify all comedian stand-up albums 

into the audiobook collection. Many of these varied in where they would land in 

the collection, so uniting them all in one location will make finding them easier for 

patrons and staff alike. 

 Kira continues to add in many clean-up projects to her regular workflow as she 

catalogs new materials. When she finds books on the same subject in different 

locations, she will regularly go to the shelf and update them to make sure our call 

number assignment is consistent within a specific topic. She has also assisted in 

retroactively updating and enhancing bib records from before her tenure in the 

Access Services department. 

 Maria is working with Lucas, Kira, and Mary Sustar on the creation of a new 4K 

Blu-Ray collection for the ATS department. This will include the creation of a new 

call number setup, unique bib records for most materials, and the creation of 

artwork for series bundles that are split into individual seasons. 

 Lucas posted a job ad for the vacant position in Access Services and is hoping to 

have a new staff member hired by the end of January. 

 Construction started as of December 5th and Access Services is now the 

walkway for people entering the library through the staff entrance. We are 

prepared for more noise and to see more of our colleagues on a daily basis. 

 Maria assisted the kids room with updating one of their Picturebook Favorites 

categories 

 We have seen an uptick in the number of things ordered this month as we 

approach the end of the fiscal year. Between the increase in materials received, 

105



ongoing collection maintenance projects, and preparing for our move out of the 

Access Services office in January, we are going to have a very busy winter. 

 Lucas is working with ATS and KR folks to discuss ways in which Access can 

utilize our catalog software to help track things such as collection budgets, 

inventory/subject data for materials, and more descriptive home locations for 

items on the patron-end of the catalog. 

 

November Adult & Teens Kids Both 

Items Added 
   

            Print 895 783 
 

            AV 211 44 
 

Items Discarded 
   

            Print 1583 1449 
 

            AV 321 151 
 

Items Repaired 
  

119 

Items Reclassified 
  

108 

Original Records  
  

23 

 

 

December Adult & Teens Kids Both 

Items Added 
   

            Print 1202 573 
 

            AV 279 3 
 

Items Discarded 
   

            Print 804 963 
 

            AV 75 11 
 

Items Repaired 
  

425 

Items Reclassified 
  

166 

Original Records  
  

61 

106



Building Operations – Ian Knorr 

 I met with Mike Skinner of 360 Clean to discuss cleaning price increases for the 

2023/2024 year. There was a cost increase, but the pricing from 360 Clean still 

came in under quotes I was given by competitors. 

 E-Scrap Technologies came to pick up our electronics recycling. 

 Tables, chairs and other items were moved in preparation for the elevator 

project. 

 The staff hall, maintenance shop, monitors station, Kid’s workroom, Sharon and 

Amanda’s office and the Kid’s department manager’s office were moved into the 

meeting room in preparation for the workroom construction projects. 

 The elevator modernization project started. 

 The Christmas lights were hung on the building. 

 I attended the construction kick-off meeting with Jason Perkunis of SMC and the 

involved vendors. 

 Per ASME A17.1/B44 2019 Elevator Code, new elevators are required to have 

enhanced visual communications for the hearing or speech impaired, meaning 

that a camera is required to be installed inside the elevator. This camera is 

required to be monitored 24/7 in case of emergency. I obtained pricing from 

Kings III emergency communications and signed a monitoring agreement with 

them that will renew annually. 

 I contacted Gary Roach with Nelson Fire Protection to schedule our annual 

testing of the sprinkler system. 

 The Safety Team held its quarterly meeting where we reviewed and suggested 

changes for the Emergency Manual. The team’s next charge is to review the 

Code of Conduct violations, review service suspension lengths to make sure 

appropriate suspension length of time is being acted upon. 

 Construction for Kid’s Workroom renovation began. As of now we are scheduled 

to start moving their staff back in on Monday, January 30th. Jason Perkunis from 

SMC Construction Services and I have been overseeing this project together to 

make sure we meet our projected end date. 

 The elevator modernization project was completed and we received our 

temporary usage permit from Thompson Elevator Inspection Services on 

December 14th. 

 Due to vandalism (etching into the glass), four pieces of glass were replaced as 

they could not be repaired. 

 Stanley Automatic Door systems replaced the gear motor and sensor on the 

Forest Avenue automatic sliding door. This was covered under our parts and 

labor contract. 

 Kings III Monitoring installed their equipment for elevator car monitoring. This 

monitoring is required per 2019 Code updates ASME A17.1/CSA B44 Safety 

Code. This change adds video messaging for elevators and 2-way audio and 

video monitoring. 

107



 New ranges of shelving were installed in the Kid’s department to make room for 

the magazine and graphic novel sections. 

108



07-046 Circulation Statistics

1/23/2023

November
Circulation N0V 22 % N0V 21 % NOV 20 %
Checkouts
Selfchecks 29,440 73% 31,140 75% 17,850 52%
Staff desk 9,626 24% 10,020 24% 16,329 48%
Lockers 1,040 3% 622 1% 0
Total checkouts 40,106 41,782 34,179

Renewals
Auto Renewal 29,823 30,025 32,199
Selfchecks 4 12
Staff desk (incl. phone) 271 299 225
Patron renewals on website 0 161 676
Patron renewals on Bookmyne 0 5
BlueCloud Mobile/Web services (22 & 11) 808 525 100

Total renewals 30,906 31,027 33,200

Total item checkout and renewals 71,012 72,809 67,379

Digital Circulation 12,191 11,549 12,414

Total Circulation 83,203 84,358 79,793

Reserves Processed
Received from ILL 3,992 4,286 5,191
ILL sent 4,494 3,906 4,707
OCLC requests processed 179 168 178

Gate count
North 19,726 15,059 7,241
South 11,314 9,203 7,835
Total 31,040 24,262 15,076
Lockers 1,040 0 0
Gate Count and Lockers Total 32,080 24,262 15,076

Curbside Count 0 0 0

Registrations
New resident cards 145 149 93
New fee cards 3 4 1

Professional Development Hours* 80 160 6
Cost of Professional Development $0 $0 $0

109



Circulation

Nov 2021 Nov 2022

Adult 36,838 34,491 399,966 393,122

Teen 1,521 1,467 22,138 20,932

Children 34,450 35,054 374,442 373,736

Download 11,549 12,191 132,130 137,553

Total 84,358 83,203 928,676 925,343 -3,333 -0.4%

Circulation - By Item

Books Audio Video Misc. Total

Adult 23,667 68.62% 2,481 7.19% 6,123 17.75% 2,220 6.44% 34,491

Teen 1,403 95.64% 25 1.70% 17 1.16% 22 1.50% 1,467

Children 30,772 87.78% 1,180 3.37% 2,089 5.96% 1,013 2.89% 35,054

Total 55,842 78.64% 3,686 5.19% 8,229 11.59% 3,255 4.58% 71,012

Collection - All Items

Books Audio Video Misc. Total

Adult 118,027 75.09% 15,879 10.10% 16,265 10.35% 7,016 4.46% 157,187

Children 80,234 86.42% 2,967 3.20% 7,659 8.25% 1,983 2.14% 92,843

Total 198,261 79.29% 18,846 7.54% 23,924 9.57% 8,999 3.60% 250,030

Book Collection 

Nov 2021 Nov 2022

Adult 119,621 118,027

Children 78,721 80,234

Total 198,342 198,261 198,342 198,261 -81 0.0%

Audio Collection

Nov 2021 Nov 2022

Adult 15,222 15,879

Children 2,846 2,967

Total 18,068 18,846 18,068 18,846 778 4.3%

Video Collection 

Nov 2021 Nov 2022

Adult 15,635 16,265

Children 7,667 7,659

Total 23,302 23,924 23,302 23,924 622 2.7%

Miscellaneous Collection

Nov 2021 Nov 2022

Adult 6,872 7,016

Children 2,009 1,983

Total 8,881 8,999 8,881 8,999 118 1.3%

Statistics for November 2022 (FY Jan-Dec)

YTD Totals

YTD Difference

YTD Totals YTD Difference

YTD Totals YTD Difference

YTD Totals YTD Difference

YTD Totals YTD Difference

110



Rooms & Spaces 

Nov 2021 Nov 2022

Community Use of Rooms 819 1,110

Meeting, Conference, Study Rooms

Community Use of Spaces 67 130

Media Lab, STEM Room, Teen Gaming

Rooms and Spaces Total 886 1,240 3,991 10,367 6,376 159.8%

Programs Offered

Library Programs Offered Nov 2022

Adult 35

Teen 5

Children 69

Self-Directed Programs Offered

Adult 20

Teen 5

Children 0

Programs Offered Total 134 1,347

Program Attendance

Library Program Attendance Nov 2022

Adult 553

Teen 92

Children 1,275

Self-Directed Program Attendance

Adult 2,422

Teen 85

Children 0

Program Attendance Total 4,427 45,704

Virtual Program Views Total 438 5,214

Website Views

Nov 2021 Nov 2022

Total Website Views 22,080 33,901 291,593 316,364 24,771 8.5%

YTD Totals

Statistics for November 2022 (FY Jan-Dec)

YTD Totals YTD Difference

YTD Totals

YTD DifferenceYTD Totals

111



Library Visits

Nov 2021 Nov 2022

Gate Count 24,262 31,040

Locker Pickup 622 1,040

Total Library Visits 24,884 32,080 247,989 295,017 47,028 19.0%

One-on-One Services

Nov 2021 Nov 2022

One-On-Ones 18 24

Homebound 0 8

Notary 29 32

Total Sessions 47 64 350 758 408 116.6%

Computer User Sessions

Nov 2021 Nov 2022

Adult 1,544 1,583

Children 279 674

Total 1,823 2,257 15,882 20,809 4,927 31.0%

Wireless Sessions 983 1,382 7,302 11,299 3,997 54.7%

Printing Services

Nov 2021 Nov 2022

Poster 2 2

3D 14 20

Total Prints 16 22 140 175 35 25.0%

The Cupboard

Nov 2021 Nov 2022

Total Donations 1,573 1,349 13,778 22,884 9,106 66.1%

YTD Totals

YTD Totals

YTD Difference

YTD Totals YTD Difference

YTD Difference

YTD Difference

YTD Totals YTD Difference

Statistics for November 2022 (FY Jan-Dec)

YTD Totals

112



07-046 Circulation Statistics

1/23/2023

December
Circulation DEC 22 DEC 21 DEC 20 %
Checkouts
Selfchecks 26,667 68% 29,585 71% 410 2%
Staff desk 11,222 29% 11,354 27% 20,352 98%
Lockers 1,158 3% 833 2% 0
Total checkouts 39,047 41,772 20,762

Renewals
Auto-renewal 30,418 30,066 27,325
Selfchecks 8 3 0
Staff desk (incl. phone) 308 587 250
Patron renewals on website 0 134 698
Patron renewals on BookMyne 0 0 0
BlueCloud Mobile/Web services (22 & 11) 828 537 159

Total renewals 31,562 31,327 28,432

Total item checkout and renewals 70,609 73,099 49,194

Digital Circulation 12,587 11,515 12,404

Total Circulation 83,196 84,614 61,598

Reserves Processed
Received from ILL 4,270 4,625 6,225
ILL sent 3,936 3,822 5,854
OCLC requests processed 162 182 182

Gate count
North Building 17,399 14,387 1,390
South 9,235 9,002 10,664
Total 26,634 23,389 12,054
Lockers 1,158 833 0
Gate Count and Lockers Total 27,792 24,222 12,054

Curbside Count 0 0 0

Registrations
New resident cards 151 107 77
New fee cards 6 5 4

Professional Development Hours 27 20 10
Cost of Professional Development $0 $0 $0

113



Circulation

Dec 2021 Dec 2022

Adult 37,783 35,521 437,749 428,643

Teen 1,575 1,533 23,713 22,465

Children 33,741 33,555 408,183 407,291

Download 11,515 12,587 143,645 150,140

Total 84,614 83,196 1,013,290 1,008,539 -4,751 -0.5%

Circulation - By Item

Books Audio Video Misc. Total

Adult 23,639 66.55% 2,549 7.18% 6,591 18.56% 2,742 7.72% 35,521

Teen 1,471 95.96% 20 1.30% 15 0.98% 27 1.76% 1,533

Children 29,042 86.55% 1,095 3.26% 2,279 6.79% 1,139 3.39% 33,555

Total 54,152 76.69% 3,664 5.19% 8,885 12.58% 3,908 5.53% 70,609

Collection - All Items

Books Audio Video Misc. Total

Adult 117,780 75.31% 15,864 10.14% 16,170 10.34% 6,582 4.21% 156,396

Children 79,635 86.47% 2,969 3.22% 7,550 8.20% 1,943 2.11% 92,097

Total 197,415 79.44% 18,833 7.58% 23,720 9.55% 8,525 3.43% 248,493

Book Collection 

Dec 2021 Dec 2022

Adult 119,118 117,780

Children 78,258 79,635

Total 197,376 197,415 197,376 197,415 39 0.0%

Audio Collection

Dec 2021 Dec 2022

Adult 15,277 15,864

Children 2,847 2,969

Total 18,124 18,833 18,124 18,833 709 3.9%

Video Collection 

Dec 2021 Dec 2022

Adult 15,745 16,170

Children 7,726 7,550

Total 23,471 23,720 23,471 23,720 249 1.1%

Miscellaneous Collection

Dec 2021 Dec 2022

Adult 6,328 6,582

Children 1,972 1,943

Total 8,300 8,525 8,300 8,525 225 2.7%

YTD Difference

YTD Totals YTD Difference

Statistics for December 2022 (FY Jan-Dec)

YTD Totals

YTD Difference

YTD Totals YTD Difference

YTD Totals YTD Difference

YTD Totals

114



Rooms & Spaces 

Dec 2021 Dec 2022

Community Use of Rooms 736 909

Meeting, Conference, Study Rooms

Community Use of Spaces 68 113

Media Lab, STEM Room, Teen Gaming

Rooms and Spaces Total 804 1,022 4,795 11,389 6,594 137.5%

Programs Offered

Library Programs Offered Dec 2022

Adult 18

Teen 4

Children 54

Self-Directed Programs Offered

Adult 12

Teen 8

Children 3

Programs Offered Total 99 1,446

Program Attendance

Library Program Attendance Dec 2022

Adult 273

Teen 39

Children 0

Self-Directed Program Attendance

Adult 538

Teen 133

Children 404

Program Attendance Total 1,387 47,091

Total Virtual Program Views 325 5,539

Website Views

Dec 2021 Dec 2022

Total Website Views 38,949 32,047 330,542 348,411 17,869 5.4%

Statistics for December 2022 (FY Jan-Dec)

YTD Totals YTD Difference

YTD Totals

YTD Totals

YTD Totals YTD Difference

115



Library Visits

Dec 2021 Dec 2022

Gate Count 23,389 26,634

Locker Pickup 833 1,158

Total Library Visits 24,222 27,792 272,211 322,809 50,598 18.6%

One-on-One Services

Dec 2021 Dec 2022

One-on-Ones 22 27

Homebound 0 4

Notary 22 46

Total Sessions 44 77 394 835 441 111.9%

Computer User Sessions

Dec 2021 Dec 2022

Adult 1,404 1,442

Children 462 614

Total 1,866 2,056 17,748 22,865 5,117 28.8%

Wireless Sessions 879 1,125 8,181 12,424 4,243 51.9%

Printing Services

Dec 2021 Dec 2022

Poster 0 0

3D 5 19

Total Prints 5 19 145 194 49 33.8%

The Cupboard

Dec 2021 Dec 2022

Total Donations 5,052 1,075 18,830 23,959 5,129 27.2%

YTD Totals

YTD Totals

Statistics for December 2022 (FY Jan-Dec)

YTD Totals YTD Difference

YTD Totals YTD Difference

YTD Difference

YTD Difference

YTD Totals YTD Difference

116


	1 January Agenda
	Library Board Minutes November 16, 2022
	Cover Sheet - December 2022 Invoices
	Invoices - Capital Replacement - December 2022
	Invoices of Note Capital Replacement - December 2022
	Invoices - December 2022
	Invoices of Note - December 2022
	Credit Memos - December 2022
	Credit Card Report December 2022
	Payroll November 2022
	Cover Sheet - January 2023 Invoices FY 2022
	Invoices - Capital Replacement - January 2023 FY 2022
	Invoices of Note Capital Replacement - January 2023 FY 2022
	Invoices - January 2023 FY 2022
	Invoices of Note - January 2023 FY 2022
	Credit Memos - January 2023 FY 2022
	Payroll December 2022
	Cover Sheet - January 2022 Invoices FY 2022
	Invoices - Capital Replacement - January 2023 FY 2023
	Invoices of Note Capital Replacement - January 2023 FY 2023
	Invoices - January 2023 FY 2023
	Invoices of Note - January 2023 FY 2023
	Credit Memos - January 2023 FY 2023
	Credit Card Report January 2023
	8a1 Building Operations Department Presentation
	8B1 LIRA renewal
	8b2 Consolidated pricing page
	8b3 LIRA cover and info piece
	8b4 LIRA 22-23 Program Structure
	8C1 Bylaws
	10a LR
	10b 2023 Per Capita Grant application
	10c 2023 app
	10D 2023 app 2021 expenditures
	10e Monthly_Summary_2018-2022 cover
	10f Monthly_Summary_2018-2022
	Worksheet

	10g RTL _Sample_focus_group_schedule 2022
	RTL-Sample

	10g RTL_Information_Request_List_StrategicPlan_2022
	NOTE: Only provide the documentation you already have, if you do not have something let us know and we can discuss.
	Email these documents and any questions related to them to RTL@ReThinkingLibraries.Org
	Note that additional information may be requested throughout the duration of this project.

	10i RTL-Collection_Analysis_Spreadsheet_2022
	Collection Analysis

	Department Reports - November and December 2022


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


	Legal Name of Library: Downers Grove Public Library
	Librarys Control Number: 30236
	Branch Number: 00
	Todays Date: 1/17/2022
	Preparers Name: Julie
	Last Name: Milavec
	Preparers Title: Library Director
	Preparers Phone Number: 630-960-1200
	Preparers Email Address: jmilavec@dglibrary.org
	Pg1 certify check box: Yes
	Service Area Population: 50,247
	Page 2: The Downers Grove Public Library (DGPL) Board of Library Trustees hired a strategic planning consultant in November 2022 to guide development of a new Strategic Plan (Core 13). DGPL meets all other Core Standards.
	meets all components of the Governance and Administration checklist please indicate 150 word limit: The Downers Grove Public Library (DGPL) Board of Library Trustees hired a strategic planning consultant in November 2022 to guide development of a new Strategic Plan. Trustees receive information about local, regional, state, and national conferences pertinent to libraries. DGPL meets all other components of the Governance and Administration checklist.
	meets all components of the Personnel checklist please indicate 150 word limit: DGPL meets all components of the Personnel checklist.
	meets all components of the Access checklist please indicate 150 word limit: DGPL meets all components of the Access checklist to the best of its ability. All parking available adjacent to and nearby the library’s single, downtown location is owned and maintained by the Village of Downers Grove, of which DGPL is a component unit. Development of a new, full Strategic Plan is underway with the hiring of a strategic planning consultant in November 2022.
	meets all components of the Building Infrastructure and Maintenance checklists please indicate 150 word limit: DGPL meets all components of the Building Infrastructure and Maintenance checklists to the best of its ability. All parking available adjacent to and nearby the library’s single, downtown location is owned and maintained by the Village of Downers Grove, of which DGPL is a component unit. DGPL’s Capital Needs Assessment 2017-2027 provides a roadmap for capital projects through 2027.
	meets all components of the Safety checklist please indicate 150 word limit: DGPL meets all components of the Safety checklist.
	meets all components of the Collection Management checklist please indicate 150 word limit: DGPL meets all components of the Collection Management checklist.
	word limit: DGPL meets all components of the System Membership Responsibilities and Resource Sharing checklist.
	word limit_2: DGPL meets all components of the Reference Service checklist and all but one of the Reader’s Advisory Service checklist. Most, but not all, staff responsible for Reader’s Advisory Service are a part of at least one community organization, club, or council. Multiple staff across departments and from all levels of the organization hold some responsibility for Reader’s Advisory Service. Under this model, participation by all staff involved in readers' advisory service is not feasible.
	meets all components of the Programming checklist please indicate 150 word limit: DGPL meets all components of the Programming checklist.
	meets all components of the YouthYoung Adult Services checklist please indicate 150 word limit: DGPL meets all components of the Youth/Young Adult Services checklist.
	meets all components of the Technology checklist please indicate 150 word limit: DGPL meets all components of the Technology checklist.
	meets all components of the Marketing Promotion and Collaboration checklist please indicate 150 word limit: DGPL meets all components of the Marketing, Promotion, and Collaboration checklist.
	actual planned expenditures Do NOT include monetary figures or specific brands: The Downers Grove Public Library plans to use the entire amount of any Per Capita grant for the purchase of books, audiovisual materials, and electronic resources for public use. Use of Per Capita grant monies on library materials will ensure DGPL meets Core 21: As a baseline, the library appropriates money to major budget categories (personnel, benefits, library materials, other operating expenditures) using the Illinois Public Library Annual Report statewide percentages analysis.
	Control Number: 
	City: 
	Library Name: 
	Exact amount of Per Capita Grant received in Fiscal Year 2021: 
	Check Box1: Off
	Text2: 
	Governance and Administration  Chapter 2: Off
	Text3: 
	Personnel  Chapter 3: Off
	Text4: 
	Access  Chapter 4: Off
	Text5: 
	Building Infrastructure and Maintenance  Chapter 5: Off
	Text6: 
	Safety  Chapter 6: Off
	Text7: 
	Collection Management  Chapter 7: Off
	Text8: 
	System Member Responsibilities and Resource Sharing  Chapter 8: Off
	Text9: 
	Public Services Reference and ReadersAdvisory  Chapter 9: Off
	Text10: 
	Programming  Chapter 10: Off
	Text11: 
	YouthYoung Adult Services  Chapter 11: Off
	Text12: 
	Technology  Chapter 12: Off
	Text13: 
	Marketing Promotion and Collaboration  Chapter 13: Off
	Text14: 


